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CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Good morning. This i s a 

2 s p e c i a l meeting of the O i l Conservation Commission on 

3 J u l y 14th, 9:00, i n the Wendell Chino B u i l d i n g . 

4 To the my l e f t i s Dr. Robert Balch. To h i s 

5 l e f t i s Cheryl Bada. To my r i g h t i s Scott Dawson, and t o 

6 h i s r i g h t i s Florene Davidson. I'm Jami Bailey, Chairman 

7 of the Commission. Welcome. 

8 We have several t h i n g s t o take care of t h i s 

9 morning before we r e a l l y get down t o business. F i r s t , we 

10 need t o look at the minutes. Have the Commissioners had 

11 a chance t o review the minutes of the previous meeting of 

12 June 28th? 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I have. 

14 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: Yes. 

15 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: I s there a motion t o 

16 adopt these minutes? 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I so motion. 

18 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Second? 

19 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: I second. 

20 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: A l l those i n favor, 

21 s i g n i f y by saying aye. A l l those opposed? Then I w i l l 

22 s i g n on behalf of the Commission and transmit them t o the 

23 Commission secretary. 

24 The next item of business i s a series of 

25 motions t h a t have been f i l e d by both p a r t i e s i n Case 
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1 Number 13589, which i s the a p p l i c a t i o n of DCP Midstream, 

2 LP, t o amend Order Number R-12546, Lea County, New 

3 Mexico. 

4 Ap p l i c a n t moves f o r an order amending O i l 

5 Conservation Commission Order Number R-12546 (D), t o 

6 remove the d a i l y i n j e c t i o n r a t e i n the Linam AGI Well 

7 Number 1 and/or amending the c o n d i t i o n i n Order R-1254 6 

8 which r e q u i r e s an improved m o d i f i c a t i o n of a discharge 

9 permit. Said area i s loc a t e d approximately f o u r and a 

10 h a l f miles west of Hobbs, New Mexico. 

11 I b e l i e v e the Commission f i r s t needs t o hear 

12 arguments on the motion t o continue the hearing. Who's 

13 f i r s t up? 

14 MR. BUNTING: Madam Chair, i t ' s our 

15 motion. We'll s t a r t . Madam Chair, Commissioners, good 

16 morning. 

17 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Could we have 

18 appearances? 

19 MR. BUNTING: Tom Bunting and Rick 

20 A l v i d r e z , from M i l l e r S t r a t v e r t . We're here w i t h our 

21 c l i e n t , Mr. Randy Smith. 

22 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Good morning, Madam Chair, 

23 Commissioners, Ms. Bada. My name i s Ocean Munds-Dry. 

24 I'm w i t h the law f i r m Holland & Hart, LLP, and I 

25 represent DCP Midstream, LP. 
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1 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Mr. Bunting? 

2 MR. BUNTING: Yes, Madam Chair. We f i l e d 

3 our renewed motion t o continue. I t ' s pending before the 

4 Commission. The Commission has the d i s c r e t i o n t o 

5 continue these hearings at any time and the 

6 r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o make sure t h a t a l l r u l i n g s are based on 

7 s u b s t a n t i a l evidence and t h a t a l l p a r t i e s have the due 

8 process r e q u i r e d and the o p p o r t u n i t y t o be heard f u l l y . 

9 We f i l e d our motion t o amend -- I'm sor r y , 

10 motion t o continue on June 24th, and i t was denied by an 

11 order of J u l y 5th. And then we served discovery requests 

12 the same day, and they're due August 5th. We requested 

13 two months t o conduct discovery on the r e s u l t s of step 

14 r a t e t e s t i n g , some t e c h n i c a l data t h a t we f e e l we needed 

15 t o prove whether o f hot DCP's motion w i l l be safe and 

16 w i l l p r o t e c t the environment and human h e a l t h . 

17 We also requested operating data since 

18 commencing i n j e c t i o n t h a t shows the frequency of o f f - s i t e 

19 c o n d i t i o n s . We requested data on the remaining volume i n 

20 t h i s f o rmation. We requested data about the r e s u l t s of 

21 mechanical i n t e g r i t y t e s t i n g . 

22 Mr. Smith i s here today, and h e ' l l t e s t i f y 

23 t h a t t h i s AGI w e l l has experienced many o p e r a t i o n a l 

24 problems since i t s t a r t e d i n j e c t i n g i n 2009. And r i g h t 

25 now we're not sure i f those are volume r e l a t e d or 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
cb81 C0b7-dfb5-4a40-a64a-a91 ac5509d18 



Page 7 

1 pressure r e l a t e d or what the problems o p e r a t i o n a l l y are-. 

2 And u n t i l we and the Commission can get t h i s evidence, we 

3 don't t h i n k t h a t now i s a proper time t o hold t h i s 

4 hearing. 

5 The previous hearings on DCP's a p p l i c a t i o n , 

6 they d i d n ' t i n v o l v e any of t h i s o p e r a t i o n a l data because 

7 i t wasn't i n o p e r a t i o n y e t . And now t h a t we and the 

8 Commission have the b e n e f i t of t h i s over a year of data, 

9 we t h i n k i t i s appropriate t o allow at l e a s t a l i t t l e b i t 

10 more time t o continue t h i s hearing and conduct a l i t t l e 

11 b i t of l i m i t e d discovery. 

12 We're at a f u r t h e r disadvantage at t h i s 

13 meeting because we d i d n ' t receive DCP's prehearing 

14 statement u n t i l around midday Tuesday. I t was less than 

15 two days ago. So hot o n l y d i d we not get any discovery, 

16 any of the data t h a t we sought i n i t i a l l y , but the data 

17 t h a t DCP i s now presenting, we haven't had time t o f u l l y 

18 review or engage a consultant t o look at any of i t . 

19 So they've i d e n t i f i e d three witnesses i n these 

20 e x h i b i t s . And I b e l i e v e we're e n t i t l e d t o more n o t i c e 

21 than t h i s t o prepare cross, go over testimony and 

22 p o s s i b l y engage an expert t o t e s t i f y on Mr. Smith's 

23 behalf. 

24 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Do you have a response? 

25 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I do, Madam Chai r . Thank 
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1 you. 

2 I f I could, I ' d reserve my comments on the 

3 discovery issue. As you know, we f i l e d a motion f o r a 

4 p r o t e c t i v e order. And i f I might, I might address those 

5 issues as t o what may or may not be appropriate discovery 

6 when we have t h a t discussion. 

7 I n terms of the motion t o continue or the 

8 renewed motion t o continue, the Smiths are arguing t h a t 

9 i t i s ap p r o p r i a t e , because we have some o p e r a t i o n a l data, 

10 t h a t we should have some discovery on t h a t and t h a t 

11 should be the subject of the hearing. 

12 C e r t a i n l y there w i l l be some l i m i t e d 

13 disc u s s i o n of t h a t today t o confirm r e a l l y t h a t what the 

14 Commission decided i n 2006, when i t reviewed the designs 

15 of the w e l l , when i t reviewed i n d e t a i l the formation t o 

16 determine whether i t was an appropriate formation t o 

17 accept the a c i d gas, t h a t a l l of t h a t has gone as 

18 expected. 

19 However, g e t t i n g i n t o the extent of a l l the 

20 s a f e t y issues t h a t the Smiths wish t o go down, they've 

21 already had t h a t o p p o r t u n i t y i n 2006 t o explore those 

22 issues. That was r e a l l y the subject of t h e i r f i r s t 

23 motion, which, Madam Chair, you've already r u l e d on. 

24 Rea l l y the p o i n t , I t h i n k , of t h e i r renewed 

25 motion i s t h a t they d i d not receive the pre-hearing 
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1 statement u n t i l t h i s week. We f e e l very badly about 

2 t h a t . I t was an un f o r t u n a t e circumstance. We d i d , i n 

3 f a c t , email i t t o them on Thursday. I confirmed i t w i t h 

4 my a s s i s t a n t t o make sure. I don't know why they d i d n ' t 

5 receive i t . We sent the hard copy, the notebook t h a t you 

6 received, i n the m a i l as a backup t o make sure they 

7 received the notebook. I don't have an explanation as t o 

8 why they d i d n ' t receive i t , and we do f e e l badly about 

9 t h a t . 

10 However, the p o i n t i s t h a t prehearing 

11 statements are normally f i l e d simultaneously. They d i d 

12 f i l e t h e i r s a day l a t e , and we objected t o t h a t . We 

13 can't argue t h a t we're not prepared t o go forward today, 

14 but we wanted f o r the record at l e a s t t o note t h a t i t was 

15 f i l e d l a t e . So we've both been a l i t t l e disadvantaged by 

16 having a l a t e pre-hearing statement. 

17 There's nothing t h a t we're presenting today 

18 t h a t i s a s u r p r i s e . Our motion was very c l e a r from the 

19 beginning t h a t we're seeking t o proceed under the 

20 o r i g i n a l order, which d i d not have a volume l i m i t a t i o n . 

21 We've brought our DCP people i n , Mr. 

22 G u t i e r r e z , t o discuss t h a t request w i t h you. And then 

23 we've also come prepared t o t a l k today about some of the 

24 a l l e g a t i o n s t h a t Mr. Smith has brought forward. We would 

25 not have been prepared t o t a l k about t h a t , other than we 
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1 were aware t h a t he had these concerns. So they were 

2 r e a l l y issues t h a t he's r a i s e d . 

3 They chose not, i n t h e i r o r i g i n a l pre-hearing 

4 statement, t o present any experts, but the testimony of 

5 Mr. Smith. So t o argue t h a t there's some p r e j u d i c e or 

6 due process issue i s I don't want t o say disingenuous, 

7 but i t shouldn't be a s u r p r i s e . There's nothing here 

8 t h a t we're p r e s e n t i n g t o you today t h a t they should not 

9 have already been aware o f . 

10 Again, we do r e g r e t the unfortunate 

11 circumstance. But f o r some reason, our process systems 

12 d i d n ' t work out l i k e we thought they would. But there's 

13 nothing t h a t should be a p r e j u d i c e or su r p r i s e t o them i n 

14 what we pla n t o present today. 

15 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Do the Commissioners 

16 have any questions of the p a r t i e s before we go i n t o 

17 executive session t o discuss t h i s renewed motion f o r 

18 continuance? 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I have no questions. 

20 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: I have no questions. 

21 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Okay. Then we w i l l go 

22 i n t o executive session, pursuant t o NMSA 1978 Section 

23 10-15-1-H, t o d e l i b e r a t e s t r i c t l y and only on t h i s 

24 renewed motion t o continue the hearing. 

25 I f you could please c l e a r the room, and w e ' l l 
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1 c a l l you back as soon as we have a response. 

2 Do I hear a motion t o go i n t o executive 

3 session? 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I make t h a t motion. 

5 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: I second. 

6 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: A l l those i n favor? 

7 (Whereupon the Commission went i n t o executive session.) 

8 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Do I hear a motion t o go 

9 back i n t o session? 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I ' l l motion t o go 

11 back i n t o session. 

12 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: I second. 

13 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: A l l those i n favor? The 

14 Commission i s back i n session. We discussed s t r i c t l y 

15 Case 13589. 

16 The de c i s i o n of the Commission i s t o deny the 

17 motion f o r continuance based on the f a c t t h a t Smith had 

18 an o p p o r t u n i t y d u r i n g the o r i g i n a l hearing and 

19 p a r t i c i p a t e d i n t h a t o r i g i n a l hearing, and no new issues 

20 t o suggest a change from t h a t o r i g i n a l p e t i t i o n are being 

21 brought up. 

22 There were problems p o s s i b l y on both side as 

23 f a r as communications before t h i s hearing, so we w i l l 

24 continue w i t h t h i s case. 

25 The next question has t o do w i t h DCP's motion 
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1 f o r a p r o t e c t i v e order. Do we hear an argument" on t h a t 

2 one? 

3 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Yes, Madam Chair. 

4 B r i e f l y , DCP f i l e d a motion f o r p r o t e c t i v e order. The 

5 Smiths served some i n t e r r o g a t o r i e s and some requests f o r 

6 production on J u l y 5th, which happened t o be the same day 

7 t h a t the Commission issued i t s order denying t h e i r f i r s t 

8 motion t o continue. 

9 The requests f o r discovery, f i r s t of a l l , were 

10 issued under the improper procedure. As you know, 

11 discovery i s issued under a subpoena. There's a s p e c i f i c 

12 r u l e t h a t i s f o l l o w e d i n order t o request discovery, so 

13 t h a t was not fo l l o w e d . They were sent as you would i n a 

14 court proceeding, by serv i n g i t d i r e c t l y on the p a r t i e s , 

15 r a t h e r than achieving a subpoena from the D i v i s i o n 

16 D i r e c t o r , as the Commission and D i v i s i o n r u l e s r e q u i r e . 

17 So t h a t ' s a problem. 

18 Number two, the discovery requests go beyond 

19 the scope of DCP's motion. Our request i s very simple, 

20 we t h i n k . And again, as we've noted p r e v i o u s l y , the 

21 Smiths are t a k i n g t h i s beyond the scope of what we're 

22 r e a l l y asking f o r and going i n t o a number of op e r a t i o n a l 

23 issues and r e a l l y checking t o see i f DCP i s i n 

24 compliance. This i s n ' t a compliance proceeding, and we 

25 c e r t a i n l y would not l i k e t o get i n t o issues beyond what 
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1 DCP's simple request i s before the Commission'today." 

2 For those reasons, we've requested a 

3 p r o t e c t i v e order requesting t h a t DCP not be re q u i r e d t o 

4 respond t o the Smiths discovery request. 

5 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Do you have a response? 

6 MR. BUNTING: Yes, Madam Chair. DCP's 

7 motion brought up what I f e e l i s three issues, two t h a t 

8 Ms. Munds-Dry brought up and a t h i r d one. 

9 The f i r s t , saying we d i d n ' t p r o p e r l y serve 

10 these requests, these were i n f o r m a l requests. We d i d n ' t 

11 t r y t o serve them pursuant t o the Rules of C i v i l 

12 Procedure or anything l i k e t h a t . I t was an i n f o r m a l 

13 request f o r some i n f o r m a t i o n , and we requested t h a t 

14 i n f o r m a t i o n . 

15 We requested t h a t i t be provided t o us i n 3 0 

16 days, but there i s -- we were j u s t asking f o r i t . We 

17 d i d n ' t f e e l l i k e i n t h i s s e t t i n g , w i t h another p a r t y , 

18 t h a t we should b r i n g the Commission's subpoena power t o 

19 bear on a simple discovery request when we could j u s t ask 

2 0 f o r i t f i r s t . The request wasn't enforceable by the 

21 Commission. We can't get a motion t o compel, but we were 

22 j u s t asking. 

23 We are aware of the r u l e t h a t allows p a r t i e s 

24 t o request subpoenas f o r discovery. And i f t h i s were 

25 discovery from a nonparty, then c e r t a i n l y we would do 
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1 t h a t . But i n t h i s s e t t i n g , we always t h i n k i t ' s b e t t e r " 

2 t o ask f i r s t . And I haven't seen any r u l e t h a t says 

3 i s s u i n g subpoenas i s the sole way t h a t we can conduct 

4 discovery of these proceedings. I've never seen a r u l e 

5 t h a t says i n t e r r o g a t o r i e s and requests f o r production are 

6 not allowed. 

7 To the second p o i n t , discovery i n t h i s s e t t i n g 

8 i s supposed t o be broad. The f a c t t h a t the Rules of 

9 C i v i l Procedure and Evidence don't apply aren't meant t o 

10 r e s t r i c t the proceeding. They're meant t o f a c i l i t a t e 

11 discovery. 

12 DCP has brought up compliance. I t ' s a l l 

13 throughout i t s amended order t h a t DCP s t a t e d i t ' s 

14 complied w i t h i t s o r i g i n a l permit c o n d i t i o n s . And i t 

15 bases i t s requests on the f a c t t h a t p a r t i a l l y i t ' s 

16 complied w i t h these permit c o n d i t i o n s . 

17 For example, i t says DCP has met a l l 

18 c o n d i t i o n s i n the o r i g i n a l order besides N and Q. I t 

19 says t h a t DCP w i l l have t o shut i n producers, r a t h e r than 

20 exceed the 4 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t per day l i m i t . This i s a 

21 compliance issue. 

22 For example, one of our i n t e r r o g a t o r i e s asked 

23 d i r e c t l y , "How have you complied w i t h t h i s l i m i t ? Are 

24 you i n compliance w i t h t h i s l i m i t ? " So DCP put these-

25 areas at issue i n i t s own motion. Therefore, we t h i n k 
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1 i t ' s a re l e v a n t area t o explore i n discovery. 

2 And b r i e f l y , a t h i r d p o i n t : DCP seems t o be 

3 arguing t h a t the requests are i n v a l i d because they are --

4 we d i d n ' t ask f o r them before the date of t h i s hearing. 

5 There are no r u l e s --we gave them 3 0 days. There's no 
6 r u l e t h a t says we couldn't ask f o r i t t o be due 

7 yesterday, but we gave them 3 0 days because t h a t ' s s o r t 

8 of the standard procedure under the c i v i l procedure 

9 r u l e s . 

10 This case doesn't disappear a f t e r the hearing. 

11 The Commission s t i l l has j u r i s d i c t i o n f o r an 

12 indeterminate amount of time r i g h t now. But i t w i l l 

13 d e f i n i t e l y r e t a i n j u r i s d i c t i o n of t h i s case past August 

14 5th, which i s when these i n t e r r o g a t o r i e s and requests f o r 

15 p r o d u t i o n were requested t o have been due. B a s i c a l l y we 

16 t h i n k the requests are w e l l w i t h i n the scope of what DCP 

17 has put i n t o issue i n i t s own motion. 

18 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Does the Commission have 

19 any questions concerning t h i s motion f o r a p r o t e c t i v e 

2 0 order? 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Can I ask a question 

22 about the data you're requesting? 

23 How much of t h a t i s beyond what i s a v a i l a b l e 

24 already i n the p u b l i c record? I n j e c t i o n r a t e s , f o r 

25 example, are a v a i l a b l e o n l i n e . 
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1 MR. BUNTING: We requested some of th a t 

2 i n f o r m a t i o n , and some of i t wasn't a v a i l a b l e t o us 

3 o n l i n e . And I can't -- I guess I don't have a l i s t r i g h t 

4 now of what s p e c i f i c a l l y we thought we could or couldn't 

5 get, but -- I'm sorr y . I don't know i f t h a t answers your 

6 question. 

7 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I f I may respond, 

8 Commissioner? We be l i e v e most of i t i s p u b l i c l y 

9 a v a i l a b l e . For t h a t matter, i f the Smiths were 

10 i n t e r e s t e d t o know i f we were i n compliance or i f we were 

11 i n v i o l a t i o n of any r u l e , most of those documents are 

12 also p u b l i c l y a v a i l a b l e . The D i v i s i o n , as you probably 

13 know, has done a very good j o b of p u t t i n g a l l of i t s 

14 records o n l i n e . I t ' s not l i k e we're t r y i n g t o keep a 

15 secret. Most of thdse documents are p u b l i c l y a v a i l a b l e . 

16 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Okay. A decisi o n on 

17 t h i s motion i s dependent on the Commission v o t i n g f o r the 

18 request f o r continuance because t h i s motion becomes moot 

19 i f the continuance i s denied by the e n t i r e Commission. 

20 So do I hear a motion t o deny the request f o r 

21 continuance? 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I ' l l make t h a t 

23 motion. 

24 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: I ' l l second i t . 

25 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: A l l those i n favor? A l l 
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1 those opposed? Nobody. 

2 So the hearing w i l l continue. The question 

3 concerning discovery becomes moot, and we w i l l be able t o 

4 swear i n witnesses at t h i s p o i n t . 

5 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Can I ask a question, 

6 Madam Chair, so I understand? I guess what I'm 

7 understanding from counsel i s t h a t t h i s i s i n f o r m a l 

8 discovery. I guess what I was p a r t l y hoping was t h a t the 

9 motion f o r p r o t e c t i v e order was c o n f i r m a t i o n t h a t we 

10 weren't r e q u i r e d t o respond t o i t because i t d i d n ' t 

11 f o l l o w the procedures of the Commission. 

12 So even though i t i s due a f t e r t h i s hearing, 

13 and I understand your p o i n t about i t being moot, we want 

14 t o make sure we're not v i o l a t i n g any o b l i g a t i o n t o 

15 respond t o discovery. 

16 MS. BADA: You can ask f o r discussion. 

17 MR. BUNTING: Madam Chair, we agree t h a t 

18 t h i s i s i n f o r m a l discovery and there's no mechanism 

19 through which we can enforce i t . I f we wanted t o s t a r t 

20 w i t h subpoenas, something t h a t was enforceable r i g h t 

21 away, we could have gotten subpoenas. So we agree t h a t 

22 i f DCP doesn't want t o respond, we can't force i t t o . 

23 '' CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Okay. Do we have any 

24 discussion among the Commission? Do I hear a motion t o 

25 provide a p r o t e c t i v e order then? 
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1 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I ' l l make the motion 

2 t o provide a p r o t e c t i v e order from t h a t i n f o r m a l 

3 discovery request. 

4 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: I ' l l second. 

5 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: A l l those "in favor? A l l 

6 those opposed? Okay. 

7 Now w e ' l l swear i n witnesses. Do you have 

8 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have three witnesses 

9 t h i s morning. 

10 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Do you have witnesses? 

11 MR. BUNTING: We have one witness. 

12 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Would a l l witnesses 

13 please stand t o Be sworn? 

14 (Four witnesses were sworn.) 

15 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Would you c a l l your 

16 f i r s t witness? 

17 MS. MUNDS-DRY: May I give a b r i e f opening 

18 statement? 

19 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Sure. 

2 0 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. Again, thank 

21 you. Again, Commissioners, since I haven't been before 

22 you, I have been before Madam Chair, my name i s Ocean 

23 Munds-Dry, and I represent DCP. 

24 I ' d l i k e t o introduce who I have behind me, 

25 three of the witnesses y o u ' l l hear from today, John Cook, 
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1 who i s the environmental manager f o r DCP; David G a r r e t t , 

2 who i s the Senior Vice President of the west business 

3 u n i t ; and A l b e r t o Gutierrez, who i s on c o n t r a c t w i t h DCP. 

4 He owns a company c a l l e d Geolex. 

5 I also have w i t h me Paul Tourangeau, who i s 

6 a s s i s t a n t general counsel. He's been i n t h a t p o s i t i o n 

7 f o r a l l of about a week, so t h i s i s an i n t r o d u c t i o n t o 

8 the Commission f o r him. 

9 I j u s t want t o b r i e f l y frame the issue f o r 

10 you. We hope, as you heard me repeat several times t h i s 

11 morning, presented t o you i n our motion i s a simple 

12 request. At the time t h a t we f i l e d the motion, we were 

13 seeking removal of the temporary l i m i t t h a t was imposed 

14 on us i n Order 12546 D. That gave us a 4 m i l l i o n volume 

15 l i m i t f o r i n j e c t i o n " a t the time. I t was meant t o be a 

16 temporary order. I t l a s t e d a l i t t l e longer than any of 

17 us a n t i c i p a t e d due t o circumstances out of our c o n t r o l . 

18 We also requested i n t h a t motion, based on a 

19 p o l i c y statement t h a t we had seen from the D i v i s i o n about 

2 0 a change i n the way they were viewing discharge permits 

21 f o r an amendment, r e a l l y a d e l e t i o n of paragraph N, 

22 Condition N i n the o r i g i n a l Order R-12546, which required 

23 DCP t o get a m o d i f i c a t i o n of i t s discharge plan f o r the 

24 Linam p l a n t . 

25 You w i l l hear testimony today from our 
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1 witnesses t h a t the AGI w e l l i s more than a'mile away from 

2 the p l a n t . But the way the D i v i s i o n Environmental Bureau 

3 viewed i t , they considered i t a l l s o r t of the same 

4 f a c i l i t y i n terms of needing t o modify the discharge 

5 permit t o inc l u d e the AGI w e l l . 

6 As I noted, i n May the D i v i s i o n entered a 

7 p o l i c y statement t h a t i n d i c a t e d t h e i r view of when 

8 discharge permits are r e q u i r e d may be changing. So we, 

9 DCP, submitted a questionnaire t o the D i v i s i o n f o r t h i s 

10 discharge permit f o r the p l a n t . And on June 22nd, the 

11 Environmental Bureau of -- the D i v i s i o n D i r e c t o r wrote 

12 back t o DCP, i n d i c a t i n g t h a t the discharge permit was 

13 rescinded f o r t h a t p l a n t , and i t would no longer be 

14 r e q u i r e d . 

15 Based on t h a t new i n f o r m a t i o n , we believe our 

16 request i s even more simple at t h i s p o i n t . Now, had we 

17 not r a i s e d t h a t motion w i t h you, we would have simply 

18 come t o the D i v i s i o n , as re q u i r e d by Condition Q, and 

19 t o l d the D i v i s i o n , "We've complied w i t h a l l the 

20 c o n d i t i o n s i n the order. Please issue a f i n a l 

21 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e order t h a t w i l l a llow us t o i n j e c t i n t o 

22 the well,"•except f o r the f a c t t h a t we s t i l l have the 

23 c o n d i t i o n i n the o r i g i n a l order by the Commission t h a t 

24 r e q u i r e s us t o get a m o d i f i c a t i o n of the discharge 

25 permit. 
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1 So we s t i l l b e l i e v e we need t o be i n f r o n t of 

2 you requesting t h a t amendment of t h a t c o n d i t i o n , based on 

3 the D i v i s i o n ' s l e t t e r t o us i n d i c a t i n g t h a t we no longer 

4 need a discharge permit, t o request t h a t you, the 

5 Commission, delete t h a t requirement t h a t we b a s i c a l l y no 

6 longer need t o get a discharge permit. 

7 So at t h i s p o i n t , we t h i n k , and y o u ' l l hear 

8 our witnesses e x p l a i n t h i s t o you, we bel i e v e a l l we're 

9 doing a t t h i s p o i n t i s requesting an amendment or a 

10 d e l e t i o n of paragraph N, so t h a t we can be on our merry 

11 way and be under the o r i g i n a l order i n j e c t i n g i n t o the 

12 AGI w e l l . 

13 With t h a t , Madam Chair and Commissioners, we 

14 can c a l l our f i r s t witness. 

15 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Okay. 

16 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We c a l l John Cook, please. 

17 JOHN COOK 

18 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

19 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

2 0 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

21 Q. Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the 

22 record? 

23 A. John Wendell Cook. 

24 Q. And where do you reside? 

25 A. Midland , Texas. 
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1 Q. By whom are you employed? 

2 A. DCP Midstream, LP. 

3 Q. What i s your p o s i t i o n w i t h DCP? 

4 A. I'm the environmental manager f o r the west 

5 region. 

6 Q. What does t h a t mean? I f you could e x p l a i n t o 

7 the Commission, what are your d u t i e s as environmental 

8 manager? 

9 A. I am responsible f o r environmental compliance 

10 f o r the west region, composed of Texas, Aztec and the 

11 Permian Basin and also the Southeast New Mexico assets 

12 f o r DCP. 

13 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

14 Commission? 

15 A. I have not. 

16 Q. I f you could b r i e f l y summarize your education 

17 and work experience f o r the Commission? 

18 A. Sure. I am a chemical engineer from Texas A&M 

19 U n i v e r s i t y . I graduated i n 1994. I was h i r e d by Dow 

20 Chemical. I have a v a r i e d background i n engineering, 

21 d i f f e r e n t technologies w i t h i n Dow Chemical. Probably 

22 h a l f my career i n Dow Chemical, 16 years, e i g h t years as 

23 manufacturing, and then e i g h t years was i n t o 

24 environmental h e a l t h and s a f e t y . 

2 5 And then w i t h i n the l a s t year, I moved t o the 
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1 Midland area t o work f o r DCP Midstream as the 

2 environmental manager. 

'3 Q. And i f I could focus your a t t e n t i o n more 

4 s p e c i f i c a l l y on what are your d u t i e s w i t h respect t o the 

5 Linam p l a n t and r e a l l y the AGI well? 

6 A. My dut i e s i s I supervise a group of f o l k s t h a t 

7 i s -- work i n the f a c i l i t i e s from environmental 

8 compliance f o r AGI and also the Linam f a c i l i t y . That's 

9 a i r compliance, water compliance and waste compliance. 

10 So any c o n d i t i o n s t h a t are placed upon these f a c i l i t i e s , 

11 we ensure those compliance l i m i t s are met. 

12 Q. And before we leave the t o p i c of your 

13 experience, do you belong t o any organizations as a 

14 chemical engineer? 

15 A. I have h i s t o r i c a l l y . When I worked f o r Dow 

16 Chemical, I was an o f f i c e r f o r the V i n y l Chloride Safety 

17 A s s o c i a t i o n across North America. 

18 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the motion t h a t DCP has 

19 f i l e d here today? 

2 0 A. Yes. 

21 Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the h i s t o r y of the 

22 a c i d gas i n j e c t i o n w e l l t h a t we are going t o discuss? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Madam Chair , we tender 

25 Mr. Cook as an exper t i n chemical eng inee r ing . 
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1 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Are there any 

2 objections? 

3 MR. BUNTING: No o b j e c t i o n . 

4 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: His q u a l i f i c a t i o n s are 

5 accepted. 

6 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you, Madam Chair. 

7 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) Could you please b r i e f l y 

8 summarize what DCP i s seeking today? 

9 A. DCP's motion requests the removal of the 

10 temporary volume t h a t was issued i n Order D as a 

11 temporary l i m i t . And what we're asking i s t h a t t h a t 

12 c o n d i t i o n N be amended or del e t e d from the order and we 

13 go back t o the o r i g i n a l order. 

14 Since the motion has been f i l e d , the OCD has 

15 communicated t h a t DCP hb longer needs a discharge permit. 

16 And t h i s was as a r e s u l t of the p o l i c y change t h a t was 

17 made i n 2010 issued by the OCD. Therefore, DCP requests 

18 a u t h o r i z a t i o n t o proceed under the o r i g i n a l Order N, 

19 which would be amended, or d e l e t i o n of the orde r i n g 

20 paragraph N. 

21 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Cook, I ' d l i k e t o t u r n 

22 t o what's been marked as DCP E x h i b i t Number 1. 

23 Do a l l the Commissioners and counsel have a 

24 copy of those e x h i b i t s ? I want t o make sure before we 

25 proceed. Chairwoman B a i l e y was here f o r t h a t 2006 
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1 proceeding.. But f o r -the b e n e f i t of the other 

2 Commissioners, I ' d l i k e us t o go through the h i s t o r y of 

3 the orders on t h i s b r i e f l y . 

4 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) I f you could, i d e n t i f y and 

5 review f o r us the f i r s t document tabbed here under 

6 E x h i b i t 1. 

7 A. Okay. E x h i b i t 1 i s a l i s t of a l l the orders 

8 t h a t DCP has been working w i t h w i t h the Commission. The 

9 o r i g i n a l order was issued i n 2006, a u t h o r i z i n g DCP f o r an 

10 acid gas i n j e c t i o n w e l l f o r the Linam Gas Plant. S h o r t l y 

11 t h e r e a f t e r , there was a minor amendment t o the order. 

12 There was also a rehearing a p p l i c a t i o n denied w i t h Order 

13 A. 

14 Q. That's under Tab A i n our notebook? 

15 A. Yes, i t i s . 

16 Q. What's Tab B? 

17 A. Tab B was a request f o r an extension. We had 

18 one year t o commence the AGI, and DCP needed more time t o 

19 i n s t a l l surface f a c i l i t i e s . 

2 0 Q. So DCP requested an a d d i t i o n a l year extension, 

21 I believe? 

22 A. T h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

23 Q. What i s under Tab C? 

24 A. Tab C was another ex tens ion f o r the 

25 commencement o f the AGI o p e r a t i o n t h a t DCP requested. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
cb81 C0b7-dfb5-4a40-a64a-a91 ac5509d18 



Page 26 

1 CT. Okay. Let's t u r n t o Tab D " and", i f " we could, 

2 review the terms of t h i s order, i n p a r t i c u l a r since t h i s 

3 i s what p r e c i p i t a t e d our time here. What d i d Order D 

4 grant DCP? 

5 A. DCP had requested a temporary approval of 

6 Order D t o commence a c i d gas i n j e c t i o n . This was 

7 p r i m a r i l y due because the c o n t r o l device f o r the Linam 

8 Gas Plant was having some s i g n i f i c a n t o p e r a t i o n a l issues, 

9 the S u l f u r Recovery U n i t . So DCP came forward t o the 

10 Commission, asking t o i n j e c t a c i d gas e a r l i e r than 

11 a n t i c i p a t e d . 

12 And as a r e s u l t of t h i s , there was a temporary 

13 l i m i t t h a t was l i s t e d here f o r a r a t e of 4 m i l l i o n . DCP 

14 a n t i c i p a t e d t h a t r a t e t o be f o r about 90 days as a 

15 temporary l i m i t , w i t h an average pressure of around 1,800 

16 p s i g . 

17 Q. At t h a t p o i n t , had DCP complied w i t h a l l the 

18 c o n d i t i o n s i n the o r i g i n a l order? 

19 A. Yes. 

2 0 Q. What was DCP w a i t i n g on then at t h a t point? 

21 Why couldn't we proceed under the o r i g i n a l order? 

22 A. DCP was -- w e l l , a c t u a l l y DCP was w a i t i n g on 

23 the Commission from a discharge p l a n t -- w a i t i n g f o r OCD 

24 t o issue us a discharge permit, and t h a t would b r i n g 
25 closure on the order. 
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1 Q. And how i s the 4 m i l l i o n r a t e a r r i v e d at? 

2 A. There was a temporary agreement t h a t would 

3 allow us t o s a f e l y shut down our S u l f u r Recovery Unit and 

4 continue t o process sour gas at our Linam f a c i l i t y t o 

5 allow us t o again b r i n g the u n i t down, because there was 

6 some issues w i t h c a t a l y t i c support and some issues w i t h 

7 our S u l f u r Recovery Uni t on a c a t a l y s t . 

8 So i t was a temporary l i m i t t h a t we f e l t l i k e the 

9 c o n d i t i o n s t h a t were operated at the f a c i l i t y a t t h a t 

10 time we f e l t we could comply w i t h on a temporary basis. 

11 Q. So the volumes t h a t DCP was r e c e i v i n g at the 

12 time, d i d DCP f e e l l i k e t h a t 4 m i l l i o n number was 

13 something they could l i v e with? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. And i t also imposed a pressure -- average 

16 pressure? 

17 A. That's c o r r e c t , average pressure of 1,800 
18 p s i g . 

19 Q. And now l e t ' s t u r n t o Tab E. What d i d t h i s 

2 0 order grant us? 

21 A. As we were w a i t i n g on the OCD t o issue a 

22 discharge permit, we were running out of the 90-day 

23 timeframe w i t h Order D, so we asked f o r another 

24 extension. So E was an extension of t h a t order. 

25 Q. That was a 60-day extension, I believe? 
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1 A. Right. 

2 Q. Tab F, what i s t h i s order? 

3 A. Tab F was another extension. Because the 

4 60-day order, as we were w a i t i n g on the discharge permit 

5 from the OCD, we r e a l i z e d we were not going t o meet t h a t , 

6 so we asked f o r another extension. 

7 Q. Then we get t o the G order. I f you could t u r n 

8 t o the second page, how i s t h i s order d i f f e r e n t than the 

9 previous extension orders? 

10 A. As DCP -- as F was going t o exp i r e , we 

11 requested another extension. And t h i s stay was granted 

12 u n t i l a hearing before the OCC. 

13 Q. And then the H order, t h a t ' s more r e c e n t l y 

14 issued? 

15 A. Correct. 

16 Q. And what d i d the H order --

17 A. The H order denied continuance of a hearing. 

18 Q. Okay. Let's t u r n then t o what's been marked 

19 as DCP E x h i b i t Number 2. What i s t h i s document? 

20 A. As I mentioned e a r l i e r , the OCD issued a 

21 requirement -- change i n requirements on May 10th. And 

22 as a r e s u l t of t h i s , as f a r as p e r t a i n i n g t o discharge 

23 permits and discharge plans, they were going through a 

24 p o l i c y change. As a r e s u l t of t h i s , they asked the 

25 f a c i l i t y t o submit q u e s t i o n n a i r e s . 
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1 We submitted a questionnaire around the Linam j 

2 Ranch AGI f a c i l i t y . And on June 22nd we received a j 

3 l e t t e r response t o our questio n n a i r e . I n t h a t l e t t e r , i t j 
4 s t a t e s t h a t a discharge permit i s no longer needed f o r 

5 the AGI f a c i l i t y at Linam Ranch. 

6 Q. Do you b e l i e v e t h a t DCP's motion, i n your 

7 expert o p i n i o n , w i l l prevent waste and p r o t e c t human 

8 h e a l t h and the environment? 

9 A. I do. AGI, a c i d gas i n j e c t i o n s , are f o r the 

10 gas processing i n d u s t r y the best a v a i l a b l e c o n t r o l 

11 technology t h a t ' s out th e r e . And as we have more growth 

12 i n the areas f o r a c i d gas or sour gas, the AGI again i s 

13 the best o p e r a t i o n f o r a c o n t r o l device. I t allows the 

14 Linam f a c i l i t y t o process t h a t gas w i t h minimal waste t o 

15 the environment. 

16 Q. And E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 t h a t you presented here 

17 today, are these records of the Commission or the 

18 D i v i s i o n ? 

19 A. Yes, they are. 

20 MS. MUNDS-DRY: With t h a t , Madam Chair, we 

21 move the admission of E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 i n t o evidence. 

22 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Any objection? 

23 MR. BUNTING: No o b j e c t i o n . 

24 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: They're admitted then. 

25 ( E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 were admitted.) 
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MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. I have nothing 

2 f u r t h e r f o r Mr. Cook. I pass the witness. 

3 MR. BUNTING: Good morning, Mr. Cook. 

4 THE WITNESS: Good morning. 

5 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

6 BY MR. BUNTING: 

7 Q. I s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t DCP i s always op e r a t i n g 

8 under t h i s l i m i t a t i o n ? 

9 A. They have been i n compliance, yes. 

10 Q. But t h a t wasn't my question. From the date of 

11 commencement of i n j e c t i o n , there's always been t h i s 4 

12 m i l l i o n volume l i m i t a t i o n , hasn't there? 

13 A. From Order D, yes. 

14 Q. And so while i n a sense you might be asked t o 

15 go back t o the status quo, i n r e a l terms you are asking 

16 f o r an increase i n volume? 

17 A. We're asking f o r the temporary l i m i t t h a t was 

18 imposed f o r the 90-day l i m i t t o be removed. 

19 Q. Was t h a t a yes? 

20 A. That was t o say t h a t we complied w i t h the 

21 temporary l i m i t f o r 90 days. And we have been i n 

22 compliance since because the l i m i t i s out there today. 

23 Q. And you're asking f o r the l i m i t t o be removed? 

24 A. We're asking t o go back t o the o r i g i n a l order 

25 t h a t was issued. 
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1 Q. Do you know what the deadly concentration of 

2 hydrogen s u l f i d e gas is? 

3 A. I would -- I mean I would defer t h a t t o our 

4 expert witness. He can go i n t o more d e t a i l . 

5 Q. As an environment manager, you're here asking 

6 the Commission t o modify t h i s permit. I s n ' t t h i s some 

7 basic i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t you might know? 

8 A. I t ' s i n our H2S contingency plan. We have 

9 t h a t as w e l l . 

10 Q. Would you be the person t o ask questions about 

11 t h i s contingency plan? 

12 A. I can -- yes, I can answer questions about the 

13 contingency plan. But i f you're going i n t o d e t a i l w i t h -

14 c a l c u l a t i o n s and so f o r t h , I defer t h a t t o our other 

15 witness. 

16 Q. Okay. Then on the contingency plan, i s n ' t the 

17 p o i n t of having one t o a l e r t the p u b l i c t o the dangers of 

18 gas, and i f there were t o be an unexpected release, as t o 

19 the s a f e t y procedure t h a t they should follow? 

2 0 A. Yes. 

21 Q. Who gets n o t i c e of t h a t plan? 

22 A. I t ' s l i s t e d i n our plan, Excel. The u t i l i t y 

23 company has copies of the plan. The Smiths should have a 

24 copy of t h a t plan. And --

25 Q. How i s t h a t determined? 
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1 A. How i s t h a t determined? 

2 Q • I s i t based on the radius of exposure who you 

3 n o t i f y of your contingency plan? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q • Okay. So everyone i n the radius of exposure 

6 should be informed of the contingency plan; i s n ' t t h a t 

7 r i g h t ? 

8 A. Yes, they should be. 

9 Q. Okay. So you sa i d the Smiths are e n t i t l e d t o 

10 notice? They should have a copy? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. Okay. The contingency plan, i t always 

13 requires a f l a r e ; correct? 

14 A. The contingency plan has c e r t a i n r e actions 

15 t o -- i f there's p a r t s per m i l l i o n exposure out there, 

16 yes. So the f l a r e s are t o m i t i g a t e s a f e t y of the 

17 s i t u a t i o n • 

18 Q. So f l a r i n g the f a c i l i t y i s a requirement of 

19 the plan? 

20 A. Yeah. 

21 Q- Okay. 

22 A. The f l a r e s also are there f o r maintenance and 

23 s t a r t - u p and shut-down a c t i v i t i e s , as w e l l . 

24 Q. When should hydrogen gas be a f l a r e d ? I s i t 

25 something t h a t happens as a matter of course, or only i n 

J 
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1 an emergency? " * " j " 

2 A. As I s t a t e d , i t could be f o r s t a r t - u p , 

3 shut-down or maintenance a c t i v i t i e s . And i t can also be J 

i 
4 f o r emergency s i t u a t i o n s . | 5 Q. Okay. I s i t DCP's p r a c t i c e t o only f l a r e 

6 during those s i t u a t i o n s t h a t you j u s t l i s t e d ? 

7 A. I f there are upset c o n d i t i o n s or, yes, i f they 

8 are s t a r t - u p s or shut-downs or malfunctions or 

9 maintenance. 

10 Q. So upset conditions? I'm sor r y . 

11 A. I was going t o say and the primary f l a r i n g 

12 should take place at the p l a n t i t s e l f . 

13 Q. Rather than the i n j e c t i o n s i t e ? 

14 A. Um-hum. But there's c e r t a i n scenarios t h a t 

15 d r i v e those f l a r i n g s i t u a t i o n s . 

16 Q. Like what? 

17 A. Well, i f you had t o -- f o r example, we do 

18 preventive maintenance on our compressions. And since 

19 you're d e a l i n g w i t h a c i d gas, you would take t h a t -- shut 

20 t h a t compressor down, i s o l a t e i t . And then you would 

21 purge t h a t a c i d gas t o a f l a r e , and i t would be 

22 i n c i n e r a t e d . I t ' s j u s t good engineering p r a c t i c e s t h a t 

23 we f o l l o w . 

24 Q. Are you aware t h a t DCP's cont ingency p lan 

25 r e q u i r e d i t t o i n s t a l l an aud ib le alarm i n my c l i e n t ' s 
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2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. And what's your understanding of why there 

4 i s n ' t one i n h i s home? 

5 A. My understanding i s t h a t Mr. Smith would not 

6 allow us on h i s p r o p e r t y t o i n s t a l l one. As a r e s u l t , we 

7 have i n s t a l l e d f o u r a l e r t systems, one on the paved road 

8 going t o the p r o p e r t y . And i t runs n o r t h and south. And 

9 then there's three t h a t are on the west/east road going 

10 i n t o the Smiths' p r o p e r t y . 

11 Q. When you say i t ' s your understanding t h a t Mr. 

12 Smith wouldn't l e t DCP on i t s property, how -- i s t h a t 

13 f i r s t h a n d knowledge t h a t you have? 

14 A. I'm sorry? 

15 Q. How do you have t h a t knowledge? 

16 A. Ta l k i n g w i t h f o l k s who d e a l t w i t h the 

17 s i t u a t i o n h i s t o r i c a l l y . 

18 Q. Was t h i s an event t h a t happened once, do you 

19 know? Or has DCP f o l l o w e d up w i t h i t s contingency plan 

20 since? 

21 A. I don't have t h a t knowledge. 

22 Q. Who would; do you know? 

23 A. I do not know. 

24 Q. Okay. Are there alarms at the w e l l i t s e l f ? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. And are there alarms at the Excel plant? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. And under what c o n d i t i o n s do those alarms go 

4 o f f ? Let's s t a r t w i t h the alarms at the w e l l . 

5 A. I b e l i e v e i t ' s 10 p a r t s per m i l l i o n . 

6 Q. So you're saying i t ' s safe t o assume t h a t any 

7 time an audible alarm i s going o f f at the w e l l , t h a t ' s 

8 because there has been a d e t e c t i o n of 10 p a r t s per 

9 m i l l i o n or higher? 

10 A. I t v a r i e s . The alarm i s i f the monitoring 

11 device i s t r i g g e r e d w i t h g r e a t e r than 10 p a r t s per 

12 m i l l i o n , i t does take emergency a c t i v a t i o n . There have 

13 been some times where there's redundancy of t h a t system 

14 t h a t there could be some ma l f u n c t i o n w i t h the 

15 i n s t r u m e n t a t i o n i t s e l f . But t h a t ' s why there's 

16 redundancy. 

17 Q. And these alarms, i s there some means t o 

18 measure the conce n t r a t i o n i n the a i r , or i s i t j u s t an 

19 alarm goes o f f ? 

20 A. No. I t ' s an analyzer of 10 p a r t s per m i l l i o n . 

21 Q. There's no way t o q u a n t i f y above t h a t what a 

22 release --

23 A. I d o n ' t have t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . 

24 Q. Okay. You d o n ' t know i f the re are sensors or 

25 any th ing t h a t would g ive us more accurate i n fo rma t ion? 
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1 A. Again, I don't have.that i n f o r m a t i o n . 

2 Q. Okay. And what's DCP's p r a c t i c e of responding 

3 when an alarm goes o f f , an alarm a t the w e l l 

4 s p e c i f i c a l l y ? I'm so r r y . 

5 A. DCP has conducted a process hazard a n a l y s i s . 

6 And as a r e s u l t of t h a t , there's many thi n g s t h a t would 

7 s i g n i f y what shuts down a c t i o n s . Off of memory, I don't 

8 have those. I have a couple t h a t I'm f a m i l i a r w i t h . But 

9 f o r me t o s i t back and r e c i t e what those a l l are, I could 

10 not do t h a t at t h i s time. 

11 Q. I take your answer t o mean t h a t a t l e a s t i n 

12 some s i t u a t i o n s , DCP would shut down the p l a n t , shut down 

13 the i n j e c t i o n ? 

14 A. Based on the scenarios and the s i g n i f i c a n c e of 

15 the event, yes. 

16 Q. And what d i d you say t h a t was again, process 

17 hazard analysis? 

18 A. PHAs. 

19 Q. How many times have you been t o the f a c i l i t y ? 

20 A. I've been t o the AGI twice, t o the w e l l s i t e . 

21 Q. Twice w h i l e i t ' s been i n operation or twice? 

22 A. Um-hum. 

23 Q. I s t h a t p a r t o f your j ob as the manager 

24 overseeing compliance? 

25 A. I cons ider i t p a r t o f my job t o be a t - - t o 
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1 view the f a c i l i t y , get out and meet and t a l k w i t h f o l k s . 

2 Q. I s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t t h i s w e l l i s i n existence 

3 as p a r t of a settlement agreement w i t h the NMED regarding 

4 a i r q u a l i t y permit v i o l a t i o n s ? 

5 A. Yes. That's what I s t a t e d e a r l i e r w i t h the 

6 a c i d s u l f u r recovery u n i t . 

7 Q. Having been t o t h i s w e l l and seen the area 

8 around i t , would you want t o l i v e on the border of t h i s 

9 well? 

10 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Objection. I don't t h i n k 

11 t h a t ' s a f a i r question t o ask the witness. That's a very 

12 argumentative question. 

13 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Sustained. 

14 MR. BUNTING: I t h i n k i t ' s f a i r , and I 

15 don't t h i n k i t ' s f a r outside the scope. 

16 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: I t ' s asking f o r personal 

17 o p i n i o n at t h i s p o i n t . 

18 MR. BUNTING: Withdrawn. 

19 Those are a l l the questions I have. 

20 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I t h i n k I have one 

21 r e d i r e c t , which I can wait u n t i l a f t e r the Commission has 

22 had a chance t o ask questions. 

23 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Yes. Do you have any 

24 questions, Commissioner Dawson? 

25 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: None at t h i s time. 
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1 " EXAMINATION • ••- • 

2 BY COMMISSIONER BALCH: 

3 Q. On your s a f e t y and contingency plan, i s t h a t a 

4 formal process? I s there s t a t e oversight on that? 

5 A. Yes. We have submitted t h a t contingency plan 

6 t o the s t a t e . 

7 Q. Who approves or disapproves i t ? 

8 A. I don't remember the name of who approved i t . 

9 Q. I mean the department. I s t h a t the OCD? 

10 A. Yeah. I was t r y i n g t o t h i n k of the r u l e , but 

11 yeah. 

12 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h p o t e n t i a l i n j e c t i v i t y of 

13 the well? What do you expect you could t h e o r e t i c a l l y 

14 i n j e c t i n t o i t safely? 

15 A. I would defer t h a t t o our expert g e o l o g i s t on 

16 t h a t . 

17 Q. Do you expect t h a t -- how much would you l i k e 

18 t o i n j e c t ? I s t h a t a b e t t e r question? 

19 A. We'd l i k e t o go back t o the o r i g i n a l order 

20 where we would not have a l i m i t a t i o n . 

21 Q. Right. But how much do you a n t i c i p a t e t h a t 

22 you would need t o i n j e c t a t t h a t f a c i l i t y ? 

23 A. That's going t o be more f o r our commercial 

24 f o l k s t o answer t h a t question. 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That's a l l the 
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1 questions I have. 

2 EXAMINATION 

3 BY CHAIRMAN BAILEY: 

4 Q. Order Number R-12546-D, i n the f i n d i n g s , 

5 Number 8, on page 2, i t says, "DCP requests i t be allowed 

6 t o i n j e c t a c i d gas at a maximum i n j e c t i o n r a t e of 4.0 

7 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t per day and an average wellhead 

8 pressure of no more than 1,800 p s i g . " 

9 The o r i g i n a l order allows a higher pressure. 

10 I'm t r y i n g t o f i n d i t now. 

11 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: 2,644. 

12 Q. Are you reque s t i n g t o change the i n j e c t i o n 

13 pressure as w e l l , or t o remain the pressure t h a t was 

14 given i n Order Number D? 

15 A. What we would l i k e t o do i s go t o the o r i g i n a l 

16 order of c o n d i t i o n s . 

17 Q. So you want a removal of the volume l i m i t a t i o n 

18 and pressure increase from D back t o the o r i g i n a l 

19 pressure t h a t was aut h o r i z e d a t t h a t time? 

20 A. I f we could go w i t h the o r i g i n a l order, t h a t 

21 would be great. 

22 Q. I s there someone who w i l l be t e s t i f y i n g today 

23 as t o the w e l l mechanics? 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. To go back t o the o r i g i n a l o rder , which i s 
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1 what you're requesting, i t t a l k s about several 

2 o p e r a t i o n a l requirements. Are you requesting changes t o 

3 those, or only t o the pressure and volume l i m i t a t i o n ? 

4 A. Just t o the discharge plan requirement and 

5 also going back t o the o r i g i n a l no volume l i m i t a t i o n , 

6 o r i g i n a l pressure, the o r i g i n a l order. 

7 Q. I s there someone t o t a l k about o p e r a t i o n a l 

8 areas, such as the r e s u l t s of the step r a t e t ests? 

9 A. Yes, we have someone. Yes. 

10 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Then I have no other 

11 questions f o r you. 

12 I s there r e d i r e c t confined t o the areas of the 

13 questions? I'm not a lawyer. 

14 MS. MUNDS-DRY: The Commissioners asked 

15 a l l of my r e d i r e c t , so I have nothing f u r t h e r f o r 

16 Mr. Cook. 

17 MR. BUNTING: Just one question, s i r . 

18 RECROSS EXAMINATION 

19 BY MR. BUNTING: 

20 Q. DCP's motion doesn't ask f o r removal of the 

21 pressure l i m i t a t i o n . I s t h a t something t h a t should be --

22 i s t h a t something t h a t should be i n f e r r e d from the 

23 request t o increase volume? 

24 A. Well, DCP i s asking t o go back t o the o r i g i n a l 

25 order. S p e c i f i c a l l y , the 90-day volume l i m i t a t i o n has 
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been a challenge for us. We have more testimony for \ 

2 t h a t . | 

3 
3 

Q. I may be mistaken, but I don't -- i f I were t o j 

4 
:j 

t e l l you t h a t t h a t ' s not what the motion asks f o r , i s j 

5 I 
t h a t something you t h i n k i s -- you know, t h a t would go j 

6 hand i n hand w i t h a request f o r increase i n volume? I 
j 

7 guess t h a t ' s what I'm asking. ! 

8 A. I would say t o your t e c h n i c a l questions from s 

9 volumes t o pressures, I defer t h a t question t o our j 

10 expert. i 

11 MR. BUNTING: Thank you. That's a l l I j 

12 have. 

13 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: The witness may be 

14 excused. 

15 MS. MUNDS-rJRY: We'd next l i k e t o c a l l ! 

16 Mr. G a r r e t t . j 

17 DAVID GARRETT 

18 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : j 

19 DIRECT EXAMINATION '. 

20 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

21 Q. Good morning. 

22 A. Food morning. 

23 Q. Please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the record. 

24 A. David Frank G a r r e t t . | 

25 Q. Mr. G a r r e t t , where do you reside? j 
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A. Crosby, Texas. 

2 Q. And by whom are you employed? 

3 A. DCP Midstream. 

4 Q. What i s your p o s i t i o n w i t h DCP? 

5 A. I'm senior v i c e p r e s i d e n t of the western 

6 business u n i t . 

7 Q. And what does t h a t mean? What are your 

8 responsibilities? 

9 A. I'm over the commercial a c t i v i t i e s and the 

10 earning and p r o f i t a b i l i t y of the western business u n i t 

11 w i t h i n DCP. 

12 Q. And do p a r t of your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s include 

13 the Linam p l a n t and the AGI well? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

16 Commission? 

17 A. No, I have not. 

18 Q. Could you b r i e f l y review your education and 

19 work experience f o r the Commission? 

20 A. Sure. I have a bachelor's degree i n Business 

21 A d m i n i s t r a t i v e , Accounting and Finance from Lawrence 

22 Technological U n i v e r s i t y . I have a Master's degree i n 

23 Business A d m i n i s t r a t i o n from the U n i v e r s i t y of St. i 

24 Thomas. 

25 I've been i n the n a t u r a l gas business since 
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1981, and the g a t h e r i n g and processing business 

2 s p e c i f i c a l l y since 1990. I bought gas. I was i n 

3 c o n t r a c t a d m i n i s t r a t i o n f o r many years and have been i n 

4 the g a t h e r i n g and processing side now f o r 21 years. And 

5 I've worked f o r DCP going on 21 years now and previous 

6 e n t i t i e s t h a t DCP has merged i n t o . 

7 Q. Mr. G a r r e t t , are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the motion 

8 t h a t DCP has f i l e d here today? 

9 A. Yes, I am. 

10 Q. And i f you could spend a l i t t l e more time so 

11 t h a t we can understand what your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s are i n 

12 terms of the AGI w e l l , what are your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s i n 

13 terms of the o p e r a t i o n of the AGI well? 

14 A. I n terms of the operations, i t ' s the 

15 commercial side. We buy the gas and d i r e c t i t t o the 

16 p l a n t or process i t . And we d e l i v e r the gas f o r 

17 producers at the t a i l g a t e , b a s i c a l l y the c o n t r a c t i n g of 

18 gas and processing and managing the p r o f i t a b i l i t y . 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. 

20 Madam Chair, we tender Mr. G a r r e t t as an 

21 expert i n the commerciality of AGI w e l l s . 

22 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Any objection? 

23 MR. BUNTING: No o b j e c t i o n . j 

24 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Your q u a l i f i c a t i o n s are 

25 acceptable. 
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1 Before we begin your testimony, why don't we 

2 take a 10-minute break? 

3 (A recess was taken.) 

4 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Back on the record. 

5 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you, Madam Chair. 

6 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) Mr. G a r r e t t , why does DCP 

7 need the Commission t o take a c t i o n on i t s motion? 

8 A. We need a c t i o n on the motion because of the 

9 development of Avalon Shale gas. We have gas shut i n 

10 w i t h producers. And I'm sure there's o i l shut i n also, 

11 since i t ' s an o i l p l a y i n Southern Lea and Eddy Counties. 

12 Q. You're e x p l a i n i n g the Avalon Shale? 

13 A. Avalon Shale, i t ' s a formation. I t ' s a name. 

14 Really, our expert would probably know b e t t e r i n terms of 

15 the geology, but I b e l i e v e i t ' s c a l l e d the Bone Springs 

16 also. 

17 Q. Has t h a t been a new play? What has l e d t o you 

18 having t o shut i n gas? 

19 A. The Avalon Shale development began about a 

2 0 year and a h a l f , maybe a year and three quarters ago. I t 

21 i s a newer play . I t i s a shale, and i t ' s fracked as 

22 such, as the shale plays are. I t has a very high or can 

23 have a very high c o n c e n t r a t i o n , comparable t o other 

24 w e l l s , of C02, very low H2S. I n f a c t , i n many cases, 

25 there's no H2S present. 
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1 Q. When did- the volume l i m i t a t i o n imposed by 

2 Order D become an issue f o r DCP? 

3 A. Late A p r i l , e a r l y May, because of the 

4 in c r e a s i n g volumes of t h i s Avalon Shale gas. I n some of 

5 the w e l l s , i t can be as much as 4 t o 16 percent C02. So 

6 i t ' s q u i t e a change from the standard almost zero t o 2 or 

7 3 percent. And w i t h the developing and b r i n g i n g on more 

8 gas down i n Southern Lea and Eddy Counties, we s t a r t e d t o 

9 see t h a t we were reaching our l i m i t . 

10 Q. When you say you had t o shut i n gas, what does 

11 t h a t mean? 

12 A. We have several producers t h a t we have refused 

13 t o take t h e i r higher C02 gas at t h i s p o i n t because we 

14 would be exceeding the l i m i t . About 25 m i l l i o n cubic 

15 f e e t a day was f l o w i n g and i s not f l o w i n g today. I'm 

16 sure there's o i l associated w i t h t h a t . 

17 We also have two places where there are about 

18 8 t o 10 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t a day of new supplies t h a t we 

19 have connected or are i n the process of connecting t o the 

2 0 system. But we've i n d i c a t e d t o these producers u n t i l we 

21 get r e l i e f here, we cannot begin t o flow and process 

22 t h e i r gas. 

23 Q. So i s t h a t what leads the producers t o have t o 

24 shut i n t h e i r wel l s? 

25 A. I b e l i e v e - - I r e a l l y d o n ' t know what they can 
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1 do. I mean they can f l a r e , I guess, maybe, or they w i l l j 

2 shut i n the w e l l s , i s my guess. j 

3 Q. You're e x p l a i n i n g t o the Commissioners t h a t j 

4 i t ' s r e a l l y an increase i n higher carbon dioxide volumes? | 

5 A. Correct. I 

6 Q. What have you seen i n terms of the hydrogen j 

7 s u l f i d e content or the H2S? j 

8 A. N i l . Really very l i t t l e t o none i n these new 

9 Avalon Shale w e l l s t o date. 

10 Q. I f you could e x p l a i n t o the Commission how the 

11 a c i d gas i n j e c t i o n w e l l has operated since i t began 

12 t a k i n g a c i d gas? 

13 A. The f a c i l i t i e s were ready t o go i n November 

14 2009. The f i r s t i n j e c t i o n s were around the middle of 

15 December 2009. The SRU, which we came forward on t o move 

16 q u i c k l y , was i n need of r e p a i r . We shut t h a t down about ! 

17 a week or two a f t e r the a c i d gas i n j e c t i o n w e l l came on. 

18 We wanted t o run i t p a r a l l e l , j u s t t o make sure a l l 

19 systems were good w i t h the a c i d gas i n j e c t i o n w e l l . And 

20 then we went t o f u l l stream i n t o the w e l l i n the l a t e r 

21 p a r t of December 2009. 

22 Q. Has the AGI w e l l performed as expected? 

23 A. Yes, o p e r a t i o n a l l y from pressures and 

24 i n j e c t i o n , normal r a t e s . 

25 Q. And has DCP, t o the best of your knowledge, 
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1 complied w i t h the r u l e s and orders of the Division? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. Why i s t h i s motion important t o DCP? 

4 A. I t ' s important t o us so t h a t we can service 

5 our customers t o produce -- allow them t o produce more 

6 gas so t h a t i t can be processed, and also o i l f o r the 

7 p u b l i c good. 

8 Q. Mr. G a r r e t t , w i l l approval of DCP's motion be 

9 i n the best i n t e r e s t of conservation, the prevention of 

10 waste and the p r o t e c t i o n of p u b l i c h e a l t h and the 

11 environment? 

12 A. Yes, i t w i l l . 

13 Q. Why i s that? 

14 A. I t w i l l be i n the b e n e f i t because r a t h e r than 

15 producers having t o -- i f they have the op t i o n t o f l a r e , 

16 they won't be f l a r i n g . T h e y ' l l get the value f o r the 

17 gas, and the environment w i l l be b e t t e r o f f f o r i t . 

18 Also, the C02 w i l l be sequestered back t o the ear t h . 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have nothing f u r t h e r f o r 

20 Mr. G a r r e t t . I pass the witness. 

21 MR. BUNTING: Good morning. 

22 THE WITNESS: Good morning. 

23 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

24 BY MR. BUNTING: 

25 Q. So I understood you t o say t h a t t o your 
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knowledge, DCP hasn't exceeded the temporary volume 

2 l i m i t a t i o n ? 

3 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

4 Q. And I have a couple questions about your 

5 a f f i d a v i t . Do you have a copy of that? 

6 THE WITNESS: I s i t here, Ocean? 

7 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No. The witness does 

8 haven't a copy of i t . 

9 MR. BUNTING: I t ' s marked as our E x h i b i t 

10 D. 

11 Can I approach the witness? 

12 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Yes, you may. 

13 MR. BUNTING: I t ' s marked as our E x h i b i t 

14 D. Here we go. 

15 Q. (By Mr. Bunting) So t h i s i s your testimony? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. This i s the sworn a f f i d a v i t t h a t was f i l e d 

18 along w i t h DCP's motion? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. I wanted t o c l e a r something up. There seems 

21 t o be a typo. I j u s t wanted t o make sure. I n Paragraph 

22 5 you s t a t e d , "DCP has no pressure concerns w i t h higher 

23 volumes and w i l l remain w i t h i n the 1,800 p s i g wellhead 

24 pressure"? 

25 A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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1 Q. Above t h a t , i n paragraph 2, you characterize 

2 t h a t as an average pressure of no more than 1,800 psig? 

3 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

4 Q. And i s i t your understanding t h a t t h i s i s the 

5 requirements f o r the average pressure or a maximum 

6 pressure of 1,800 psi? 

7 A. Average. 

8 Q. Okay. I ' l l t e l l you t h a t the order requires a 

9 maximum pressure of 1,800. And I would ask you, based on 

10 t h a t , how your -- how t h i s statement of Paragraph 5 --

11 how your assumptions t h a t the pressure l i m i t a t i o n won't 

12 be exceeded and w i l l s t i l l h o ld t r u e . I t seems there 

13 w i l l be a l a r g e d i f f e r e n c e between --

14 A. That's why we've made the request t o go back 

15 t o the o r i g i n a l order, which had a higher l e v e l . 

16 Q. I'm sorry? 

17 A. Would you repeat the question? 

18 Q. So I guess I'm j u s t asking how t h i s -- i f you 

19 can t e l l us t h a t your statement t h a t there are no 

20 pressure concerns w i t h higher volumes, was t h a t based on 

21 some c a l c u l a t i o n t h a t you d i d t h a t assumed an average 

22 pressure, i n s t e a d of a maximum pressure? 

23 A. I t ' s based on a c a l c u l a t i o n . I d i d not do the 

24 c a l c u l a t i o n , but we had experts t h a t d i d i t . 

25 Q. Okay. So you're also s t a t i n g t h a t DCP's 
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motion intends t o remove the pressure l i m i t a t i o n as w e l l 

2 as the volume l i m i t a t i o n ? 

3 A. We were requesting t o go back t o the o r i g i n a l ! 

4 order, which had a higher maximum pressure. 

5 Q. As far as you know and understand these \ 

6 c a l c u l a t i o n s , e v e r y t h i n g i n here i s s t i l l good, whether 

7 we're t a l k i n g about a maximum or a d a i l y -- I guess a I 

8 d a i l y volume of 1,800? | 

9 A. When i t comes t o -- j u s t t o c l a r i f y , when i t j 

10 comes t o the c a l c u l a t i o n s , I would defer t h a t t o our i 

11 expert witness. 

12 Q. Okay. You s a i d you do stand by your a s s e r t i o n ! 

13 t h a t the AGI w e l l s have performed as expected? 

14 A. Yes, I do. 

15 Q. So both o p e r a t i o n a l l y and i n your area of 

16 e x p e r t i s e , which would be on the commercial side? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. Would you know how many -- f i r s t of a l l , how 

19 would DCP define an upset c o n d i t i o n as i t r e l a t e s t o the 

20 AGI well? 

21 A. I'm not the one who developed the contingency 

22 plans and a l l t h a t , so I defer t h a t t o our other --

23 whatever t h a t d e f i n i t i o n i s and how i t came t o be 

24 defined. 

25 Q. I understand t h a t you might not understand ! 
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1 e x a c t l y how i t ' s d efined. Do you know s p e c i f i c a l l y or . 

2 approximately how many times t h i s w e l l has been upset? 

3 A. No, I do not. I don't r e c o l l e c t any, q u i t e 

4 honestly. But t h a t ' s -- I'm not -- I don't work at the 

5 p l a n t s i t e . But I've not heard of any. 

6 Q. Can I ask how many permanent employees there 

7 are at the p l a n t s i t e ? 

8 A. I ' d be guessing, q u i t e honestly. I n terms of 

9 permanent, there's q u i t e a few. There's also f i e l d 

10 employees i n the area t h a t go t o the f a c i l i t i e s . 

11 Q. How many times have you been there? 

12 A. I've been t o the Linam Ranch p l a n t probably 10 

13 t o 12 times. 

14 MR. BUNTING: Those are a l l my questions 

15 f o r you. Thanks. 

16 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Commissioner Dawson? 

17 EXAMINATION 

18 BY COMMISSIONER DAWSON: 

19 Q. So DCP i s requesting the i n j e c t i o n pressure t o 

20 be -- i t was o r i g i n a l l y a t 1,800 pounds per square inch. 

21 So you're requesting i t t o be greater than 1,800, up t o 

22 2,600? 

23 A. That was i n the o r i g i n a l o rder , i s my 

24 unders tanding . 

25 Q. 2,644, t h a t won ' t be the max? I t may be 
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1 g r e a t e r than that? 

2 A. Well, I defer t o our witness on t h a t . But we 

3 would comply w i t h i n the o r i g i n a l order, yes. 

4 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: That's a l l . 

5 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Commissioner Balch? 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I don't have any 

7 questions a t t h i s time. 

8 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: I do. 

9 EXAMINATION 

10 BY CHAIRMAN BAILEY: 

11 Q. You mentioned the prevalence of carbon dioxide 

12 as the i n j e c t i o n component? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. What else i s being i n j e c t e d beside H2S and 

15 C02? 

16 A. I don't have a l l the d e t a i l s . I've not seen a 

17 rundown a n a l y s i s of what a l l i s being i n j e c t e d . I ' d 

18 defer t h a t t o our expert witness. 

19 Q. Have you i n j e c t e d i n a business way f l u i d s 

2 0 other than H2S and C02? Do you have contracts f o r 

21 remedial water from cleanup operations or any other 

22 a c t i v i t i e s other than j u s t gas producers? 

23 A. No. I t ' s j u s t gas production. 

24 Q. Okay. You mentioned the predominance of C02. 

25 Do you have a percentage of i n j e c t i o n f o r C02, compared 
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1 t o H2S? 

2 A. I ' d defer t o our expert. I t has increased. 

3 To get t o the s p e c i f i c s , i t has increased from what i t 

4 was when the o r i g i n a l temporary permit was put i n t o place 

5 mainly due t o the new gas production. 

6 Q. For c l a r i f i c a t i o n , are you requesting removal 

7 of the temporary i n j e c t i o n order? 

8 A. The r e s t r i c t i o n s . 

9 Q. The r e s t r i c t i o n s of the temporary i n j e c t i o n 

10 order, which was labeled D? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Those are a l l the 

13 questions I have. Any r e d i r e c t ? 

14 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have no f u r t h e r 

15 questions. 

16 MR. BUNTING: I have two questions. 

17 RECROSS EXAMINATION 

18 BY MR. BUNTING: 

19 Q. You mentioned the producers having the 

20 a l t e r n a t i v e t o f l a r e the gas, r a t h e r than i t being shut 

21 in? 

22 A. They may. I'm f a m i l i a r w i t h Texas and 

23 somewhat w i t h New Mexico. I know i n Texas they have a 

24 r i g h t f o r a p e r i o d of time t o f l a r e , and I don't know 

25 whether they have or not. I know t h a t shales, i f they 
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1 get shut i n , are very s e n s i t i v e t o damaging the w e l l s . 

2 Q. Okay. 

3 A. At l e a s t I've been t o l d by my customers t h a t . 

4 Q. Are you aware of any other a l t e r n a t i v e s 

5 besides what we've t a l k e d about? 

6 A. A l t e r n a t i v e s ? 

7 Q. Any a l t e r n a t i v e s besides sending the gas t o 

8 Linam or f l a r i n g ? 

9 A. The way thi n g s are, they would have t o , my 

10 guess i s , f i l e t o put i n an aiming u n i t t o remove at the 

11 s i t e . And t h a t would r e q u i r e a lengthy process, t o get a 

12 permit on t h a t . 

13 Q. Sure. But t o your knowledge, are there any 

14 options t o use a c i d gas i n j e c t i o n t o produce i n the 

15 shale, f o r instance, or anything l i k e that? 

16 A. Not t o my knowledge. I mean the shale gas i s 

17 nonmerchantable w i t h the C02 i n i t . 

18 MR. BUNTING: Okay. Thank you. 

19 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Nothing more? 

20 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Nothing more. 

21 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: You may be excused. 

22 MS. MUNDS-DRY: May we proceed t o our next 

23 witness? 

24 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Yes, please do. 

25 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We c a l l Mr. G u t i e r r e z . 
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. ALBERTO GUTIERREZ 

2 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

3 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

4 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

5 Q. Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the 

6 record? 

7 A. A l b e r t o Alejandro G u t i e r r e z . 

8 Q. Where do you res i d e , Mr. Gutierrez? 

9 A. I l i v e i n Albuquerque. 

10 Q. By whom are you employed? 

11 A. Geolex, Inc. 

12 Q. What i s your p o s i t i o n w i t h Geolex? 

13 A. I'm a g e o l o g i s t , and I'm the president of the 

14 company. 

15 Q. What does Geolex do? 

16 A. Well, we do a v a r i e t y of g e o l o g i c a l and 

17 engineering s e r v i c e s . But i n the area of acid gas 

18 i n j e c t i o n , we do f e a s i b i l i t y studies,' i n v e s t i g a t i o n s and 

19 design and permit and oversee the d r i l l i n g and t e s t i n g j 

20 and operation of AGI w e l l s . 

21 Q. How many AGI w e l l s have you perm i t t e d i n the 

22 State of New Mexico or a s s i s t e d w i t h p e r m i t t i n g ? 

23 A. I t h i n k , a t l a s t count, the number i s about j 

24 e i g h t . 

25 Q. What is your relationship with DCP? \ 
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1- A. I've been a consultant f o r DCP on t h i s AGI 

2 p r o j e c t since i t s i n i t i a t i o n back i n 2005. 

3 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

4 Commission? 

5 A . I have. 

6 Q. Were your c r e d e n t i a l s accepted and made a 

7 matter of record at t h a t time? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. I n f a c t , d i d you t e s t i f y i n the o r i g i n a l 2006 

10 hearing on t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

11 A. Yes, I d i d . 

12 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the motion t h a t ' s been 

13 f i l e d by DCP i n t h i s case? 

14 A. Yes, I am. 

15 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the h i s t o r y and the 

16 volume issues r e l a t e d t o our motion on the AGI well? 

17 A. I am. 

18 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Madam Chair, we tender 

19 Mr. Gutierrez as an expert i n petroleum geology and AGI 

2 0 design and ope r a t i o n . 

21 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Any objections? 

22 MR. BUNTING: No o b j e c t i o n . 

23 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: So accepted. 

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. 

25 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) You mentioned you provided 
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1 expert testimony t o the Commission.in. the o r i g i n a l . 

2 hearing regarding DCP's a p p l i c a t i o n . What r o l e d i d you 

3 pl a y i n t h a t a p p l i c a t i o n process? 

4 A. We d i d the -- Geolex and I pe r s o n a l l y worked 

5 on and d i d the f e a s i b i l i t y i n v e s t i g a t i o n t h a t l ocated the 

6 desired l o c a t i o n f o r the w e l l and i d e n t i f i e d the 

7 c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of the r e s e r v o i r of the w e l l . 

8 We d i d the s t r a t i g r a p h i c and seismic analyses 

9 t o determine the l i m i t s and the character of the 

10 r e s e r v o i r , and we prepared the C-108 a p p l i c a t i o n on 

11 behalf of DCP f o r t h i s w e l l . 

12 And I t e s t i f i e d here at the Commission i n the 

13 hearing t h a t was held t o evaluate t h a t C-108 a p p l i c a t i o n . 

14 And subsequently, I was the sup e r v i s i n g g e o l o g i s t on the 

15 d r i l l i n g and the completion and t e s t i n g of the w e l l . 

16 Q. S p e c i f i c a l l y i n the a p p l i c a t i o n and hearing 

17 process, d i d you do the studies t o determine the 

18 i n j e c t i o n and volume r a t e s f o r the w e l l and f o r the 

19 formation? 

2 0 A. Yes. 

21 Q. I n the o r i g i n a l order of the Commission, 

22 R-12546, what was the maximum allowable operating 

23 pressure and i n j e c t i o n r a t e granted t o DCP i n the AGI 

24 well? 

25 A. The MAOP was 2,644 a t a s p e c i f i c g r a v i t y of 
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1 .8. Now, I t h i n k i t ' s r e a l l y important that- t h a t i s 

2 taken i n t o account. Because w i t h respect t o a c i d gas, 

3 the formulas, which are the formulas t h a t OCD uses t o 

4 c a l c u l a t e what would be an acceptable maximum allowable 

5 i n j e c t i o n pressure, are a f u n c t i o n not only of the depth 

6 of the i n j e c t i o n zone, but they are also a f u n c t i o n of 

7 the s p e c i f i c g r a v i t y of the f l u i d t h a t i s being i n j e c t e d . 

8 And because a c i d gas has a d e n s i t y t h a t i s 

9 lower than water, t y p i c a l l y you have t o have a higher 

10 i n j e c t i o n pressure, surface i n j e c t i o n pressure, f o r a 

11 f l u i d t h a t would be the same equivalent i n j e c t i o n 

12 pressure w i t h a denser f l u i d . 

13 So i t i s n ' t a f i x e d number. I t i s a number 

14 t h a t i s dependent on the s p e c i f i c g r a v i t y of the f l u i d . 

15 And i n the o r i g i n a l order, i t c a l l s f o r an MAOP of 2,644, 

16 and t h a t was c a l c u l a t e d on the basis of a s p e c i f i c 

17 g r a v i t y of TAG of .8. 

18 Q. And Mr. G u t i e r r e z , i s t h a t r e f l e c t e d i n the 

19 PowerPoint? We have a hard copy here. Once we get past 

2 0 the cover page, your f i r s t s l i d e , does t h a t show the 

21 c a l c u l a t i o n t h a t was used i n t h a t o r i g i n a l order? 

22 A. Yes. This shows the formula approved by the 

23 OCD. And t h i s i s a very conservative formula t h a t i s 

24 designed t o assure t h a t there i s no -- t h a t at these 

25 pressures t h a t are c a l c u l a t e d w i t h t h i s formula, t h a t 
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1 there w i l l not be any f r a c t u r i n g of the i n j e c t i o n zone or 

2 the caprock at t h a t depth. 

3 But t h i s i s the formula t h a t was used i n the 

4 o r i g i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n t o c a l c u l a t e t h a t MAOP. And i n the 

5 o r i g i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n , i t was a n t i c i p a t e d , based on the 

6 presumed mix of C02 and H2S, t h a t the TAG would have an 

7 approximate average s p e c i f i c g r a v i t y of .8. 

8 So t h i s i s how t h a t c a l c u l a t i o n was done, and 

9 t h a t i s why t h a t number was set as the MAOP f o r the 

10 o r i g i n a l order. And the o r i g i n a l order has no i n j e c t i o n 

11 r a t e l i m i t a t i o n whatsoever. I t ' s j u s t as long as the 

12 i n j e c t i o n r a t e takes place under the MAOP, i t was 

13 p e r m i t t e d under the o r i g i n a l order. 

14 Q. And there's a couple -- i f we t u r n one more 

15 s l i d e , you've got the "Revision of Order." Mr. Ga r r e t t 

16 t e s t i f i e d t o t h a t . 

17 I f you go t o your t h i r d s l i d e , you've got some 

18 temperature numbers t h a t I was hoping you could 

19 communicate t o the Commission. Are you on t h a t s l i d e ? 

20 A. Yes. As I mentioned, the a c t u a l volume and 

21 the c o n d i t i o n s of the TAG are very dependent on both the 

22 composition of the TAG and the temperature of the TAG. 

23 And so what t h i s s l i d e j u s t shows, i t ' s j u s t 

24 t a k i n g the h i s t o r i c a l data t h a t i s a v a i l a b l e t h a t 

25 i n d i c a t e s what the average temperatures and pressures 
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1 have been since the w e l l has been- op e r a t i n g i n terms of 

2 i n j e c t i o n temperature and pressure. 

3 You can see t h a t the i n j e c t i o n temperature i s 

4 r e a l l y v a r i e d between about 80-some degrees and about 108 

5 or 109 degree, and i t ' s got a median temperature of about 

6 104 and an average of about 95. And the median and the 

7 average i n j e c t i o n pressures are the same. I t ' s been 

8 about 1,150 p s i since the w e l l has been operating. 

9 Q. There's been some questions t h i s morning about 

10 the hydrogen s u l f i d e contingency plan, or H2S contingency 

11 plan. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t document? 

12 A. I am. 

13 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the i n j e c t e d gas stream 

14 assumptions which determine the radius of exposure 

15 associated w i t h the approved plan? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. Before we t u r n t h e r e , i f we could t u r n t o 

18 what's been marked as DCP's E x h i b i t Number 4. 

19 A. Yes. 

2 0 Q. The f i r s t couple of documents, i f you could 

21 i d e n t i f y and review f o r the Commission? 

22 A. These are some documents, c a l c u l a t i o n s and 

23 data t h a t I used i n my a n a l y s i s of the i n j e c t i o n h i s t o r y 

24 of t h i s w e l l . 

25 The f i r s t page j u s t shows a d e t a i l e d 
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1 day-by--day. i n j e c t i o n rate. and. a~--: f o r . the --_ not...really . 

2 a c t u a l l y i n j e c t i o n r a t e . This i s a c t u a l l y the throughput 

3 f o r the p l a n t f o r the p e r i o d of June 2011. 

4 The second page i s a summary of i n j e c t i o n 

5 pressures from the beginning of i n j e c t i o n s at the w e l l i n 

6 December 2009 through May 2011. And these data were 

7 taken d i r e c t l y from the C-115 r e p o r t s , which are on the 

8 OCD website o n l i n e , which are r e p o r t e d by DCP every 

9 month. 

10 The next page i s a c a l c u l a t i o n of the average 

11 and median i n j e c t i o n temperatures f o r the w e l l f o r the 

12 l a s t year of o p e r a t i o n . So roughly, i t gives you the 

13 temperatures -- the average temperatures f o r each of 

14 those months and then how we c a l c u l a t e d the median and 

15 average temperatures f o r t h a t annual time period . 

16 The l a s t -- the next page on t h a t e x h i b i t i s a 

17 recent a n a l y s i s of the i n l e t concentrations of gas t o the 

18 p l a n t from t h e i r f i e l d gas. And so t h i s shows t h a t r i g h t 

19 now, the p l a n t i s r e c e i v i n g i n l e t gas t h a t i s running 

20 about .573 MOL percent hydrogen s u l f i d e , and about two 

21 and a h a l f -- a l i t t l e over two and a h a l f percent carbon 

22 d i o x i d e . 

23 And t h a t i s a r e a l fundamental reason why the 

24 current l i m i t a t i o n on TAG volume makes i t impossible f o r 

25 the p l a n t t o take a l l of the gas. And i t ' s simply 
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1 because there's, so much carbon, dioxide. coming_..into the 

2 p l a n t t h a t the r e s u l t i n g TAG volume i s increased 

3 s i g n i f i c a n t l y because of t h a t C02. C02 i s the l a r g e s t 

4 component of t h a t TAG stream, always was intended t o be, 

5 but i t ' s even become a l a r g e r component of t h a t TAG 

6 stream as the w e l l has operated. 

7 Q. On t h a t note, I b e l i e v e w e ' l l get back t o the 

8 r e s t of the documents i n E x h i b i t 4. I f we could t u r n t o 

9 what's been marked as DCP E x h i b i t 3? 

10 A. Yes. I have i t . 

11 Q. Would you i d e n t i f y and review what you've put 

12 together here f o r the Commission? 

13 A. These are j u s t excerpts from the H2S 

14 contingency plan t h a t are re l e v a n t t o the issues t h a t 

15 were r a i s e d or brought up e a r l i e r . 

16 And what t h i s shows, t h i s i s l i k e -- i t ' s j u s t 

17 a copy of the cover page, the t a b l e of contents and then 

18 three appendices t h a t are i n the H2S contingency plan 

19 t h a t i s approved by OCD and t h a t the cu r r e n t f a c i l i t y i s 

2 0 o perating under. 

21 What i t shows, b a s i c a l l y , i f I can t u r n your 

22 a t t e n t i o n t o Appendix B, i t i s the radius of exposure 

23 c a l c u l a t i o n s t h a t are a p a r t of the H2S contingency plan, 

24 which would i n d i c a t e what the radius of exposure at both 

25 100 and 500 p a r t s per m i l l i o n of H2S would be i n the 
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1 event-of a-catastrophic, release, at ..the..plant, s i t e . 

2 Q. So t h i s i s worst-case scenario? 

3 A. Abso l u t e l y . I n f a c t , i t can't even occur, 

4 because the p l a n t i s a throughput process. And these 

5 worst-case scenarios assume a release instantaneously of 

6 the e n t i r e throughput. So t h a t ' s j u s t not po s s i b l e , but 

7 i t i s the way they're done. 

8 Q. Could you give us some of the assumptions t h a t 

9 are put i n t o the radius of exposure c a l c u l a t i o n ? 

10 A. There r e a l l y are only two assumptions t h a t are 

11 meaningful. One i s , what i s the volume of i n l e t gas t h a t 

12 comes i n t o the pl a n t ? And t h a t volume, f o r the purposes 

13 of t h i s c a l c u l a t i o n , the maximum volume i s 225 m i l l i o n 

14 cubic f e e t per day. 

15 And the next assumption or number t h a t i s 

16 important i s what i s the conc e n t r a t i o n of H2S i n t h a t 

17 i n l e t stream? And t h a t i s .57 MOL percent, and t h a t i s 

18 what t h i s i s based on. 

19 Now, t h i s Appendix B has r a d i i of exposure 

20 c a l c u l a t e d both f o r the p l a n t s i t e i t s e l f , as i s required 

21 by the H2S contingency plan, and then also separately f o r 

22 the p i p e l i n e and the w e l l s i t e . 

23 And i f y o u ' l l note, the ROE i s s l i g h t l y 

24 d i f f e r e n t a t the p l a n t s i t e than i t i s a t the w e l l , and 

25 there's r e a l l y a very simple reason f o r t h a t . I t ' s a 
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1 . rounding, e r r o r . Because i n effect., .when .you look, at .the 

2 c a l c u l a t i o n t h a t i s done f o r the p l a n t s i t e i t s e l f , i t i s 

3 done on the basis of the i n l e t concentration and the 

4 maximum a n t i c i p a t e d throughput f o r the p l a n t . 

5 But when you do i t f o r the w e l l s i t e i t s e l f , 

6 you're now l o o k i n g at using the discharge from the p l a n t 

7 t o the w e l l s i t e , so the value of TAG and the 

8 concentrations of H2S and C02 i n t h a t TAG. And there 

9 l i t e r a l l y i s j u s t a very small rounding issue. And so 

10 you end up g e t t i n g a 500 ppm radius at the p l a n t of 4,057 

11 f e e t , and at the w e l l of 4,073 f e e t . And at 100 ppm, 

12 i t ' s 8,877 f e e t a t the p l a n t , 8,914 at the w e l l . 

13 But r e a l l y , i n r e a l i t y , those numbers are the same 

14 because there i s no -- t h a t ' s w i t h i n the l e v e l of 

15 accuracy t h a t you do t h a t c a l c u l a t i o n . 

16 Q. So l e t me ask you some questions t h a t r e l a t e 

17 t o t h i s motion. A f t e r you reviewed the H2S contingency 

18 plan and s p e c i f i c a l l y the radius of exposure, i f DCP were 

19 granted the a b i l i t y t o proceed under i t s o r i g i n a l order, 

20 hence the removal of the 4 m i l l i o n l i m i t , would the 

21 radius of exposure c a l c u l a t e d i n the H2S contingency plan 

22 change? 

23 A. No, a b s o l u t e l y n o t . 

24 Q. Why i s t ha t ? 

25 A. The o n l y - - i f y o u ' l l note , the volume o f TAG 
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1 t h a t i s going t o the w e l l i s i n c r e a s i n g simply because . ... 

2 we're p u t t i n g more C02 i n the w e l l than was o r i g i n a l l y 

3 a n t i c i p a t e d . 

4 I f I could r e f e r back t o E x h i b i t 4. The l a s t 

5 page t h a t we looked at i n t h a t e x h i b i t , t h a t i s the i n l e t 

6 gas a n a l y s i s from the p l a n t . And you can see t h a t the 

7 MOL percent of hydrogen s u l f i d e , .573, i s e s s e n t i a l l y --

8 .57 was the number t h a t was used t o c a l c u l a t e the ROE i n 

9 the p l a n . So r e a l l y -- and i n f a c t , many times the i n l e t 

10 c o n c e n t r a t i o n t o the p l a n t i s less than .57. 

11 But i n general, as long as the i n l e t 

12 c o n c e n t r a t i o n of H2S doesn't change, i t doesn't matter 

13 how much TAG goes i n t o the w e l l , because a l l t h a t -- i t ' s 

14 a conservation of matter issue. A l l we do i s we take the 

15 hydrogen s u l f i d e t h a t comes i n t o the p l a n t , we take i t 

16 out of the gas, we put i t i n t o the TAG and then put i t 

17 i n t o the w e l l . 

18 S i m i l a r l y , we take the i n l e t concentration of 

19 C02 t h a t comes i n t o the p l a n t , we take i t out of the gas 

20 ande we put i t i n t o the w e l l . 

21 What happened i s t h a t o r i g i n a l l y when t h i s 

22 c a l c u l a t i o n was done, i t was based on a volume of 4.6 

23 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t a day of TAG. The i n l e t 

24 concentrations of C02 coming i n t o the p l a n t were about 

25 one and a h a l f percent. Right now the i n l e t 
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1 c o n c e n t r a t i o n of C02 t o the p l a n t i s running about two 

2 and a h a l f percent, and t h a t makes a 3 m i l l i o n cubic f o o t 

3 a day d i f f e r e n c e i n the volume of TAG. 

4 Q. While we're on E x h i b i t 4, I ' d l i k e t o r e t u r n , 

5 i f I could, Mr. Gut i e r r e z , t o the f i f t h page under 

6 E x h i b i t 4. 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. What does t h i s show us? 

9 A. That page i s a t a b l e t h a t I constructed. I t 

10 b a s i c a l l y summarizes a comparison of the assumptions t h a t 

11 were i n the o r i g i n a l H2S contingency plan and the curr e n t 

12 c o n d i t i o n s or assumptions, i f you w i l l , of a worst case 

13 based on the c u r r e n t i n l e t gas concentration. 

14 Q. I b e l i e v e you have a b e t t e r blown-up version 

15 of t h i s e x h i b i t document i n the PowerPoint t h a t may not 

16 s t r a i n a l l of our eyes so much. 

17 A. Maybe. I t looks l i k e i t ' s about the 10th 

18 s l i d e . But i t ' s the same c h a r t , r e a l l y . 

19 Q. Yeah. 

20 A. B a s i c a l l y , the char t shows, as I j u s t 

21 mentioned e a r l i e r , and I ' l l mention i n advance, obviously 

22 i t ' s an Excel c h a r t . And i t rounded the .57 i n the 

23 co n c e n t r a t i o n t o .6. 

24 But b a s i c a l l y the c a l c u l a t i o n i s shown t h a t 

25 ends up at the o r i g i n a l assumptions, which would have 
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1 been a co n c e n t r a t i o n -of .57 i n the- i n l e t gas-of H2S and .a-. . j. 

2 c o n c e n t r a t i o n of C02 of one and a h a l f percent MOL 

3 percent. You wind up w i t h a TAG volume of about 4.6 

4 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t a day. And of t h a t , 1.3 m i l l i o n cubic 

5 f e e t i s H2S. The other 3.3 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t i s C02. 

6 That ends up w i t h the two ROEs t h a t we j u s t 

7 discussed a t the p l a n t and at the wellhead of 

8 approximately 8,900 at 100 ppm, and about 4,050 f e e t or 

9 4,070 f e e t a t the 500 ppm ROE. 

10 The r e a l d i f f e r e n c e -- the only t h i n g t h a t i s 

11 d i f f e r e n t i s t h a t we're p u t t i n g more C02 i n t o the stream. 

12 So the ROE f o r the H2S contingency plan i s not a f f e c t e d 

13 at a l l . But what i s a f f e c t e d i s the amount of area or 

14 volume t h a t i s a f f e c t e d i n the i n j e c t i o n zone i t s e l f , i n 

15 the Bone Springs, the lower Bone Springs. 

16 There you can see t h a t under the o r i g i n a l 

17 assumptions, a f t e r 30 years, we would a f f e c t about 286. 

18 acres i f we had been p u t t i n g i n the maximum of 4.6 

19 m i l l i o n a day of TAG. Under the curr e n t c o n d i t i o n s , we 

20 would be p u t t i n g i n c l o s e r t o 7 m i l l i o n a day of TAG, and 

21 t h a t would a f f e c t about 445 acres over the 30-year time 

22 frame. And t h a t ' s what t h i s chart shows. 

23 Q. What does the next chart show us? 

24 A. The next chart shows what are the compositions 

25 and the s p e c i f i c g r a v i t y and, b a s i c a l l y , the conditions 
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1 of i n j e c t i o n - at the w e l l under the o r i g i n a l presumed- • 

2 c o n d i t i o n s when the C-108 was developed. 

3 You can see t h a t at these concentrations --

4 a c t u a l l y , when the o r i g i n a l one was developed, we 

5 estimated a s p e c i f i c g r a v i t y of the TAG of .8, and t h a t 

6 was a c t u a l l y based on an even lower concentration of C02. 

7 But i n r e a l i t y , the s p e c i f i c g r a v i t y of the TAG at the 

8 cu r r e n t -- at the hundred-degree temperatures would be 

9 about .71. 

10 But nonetheless, what i t shows i s t h a t you're 

11 e s s e n t i a l l y -- w i t h t h i s c o n c e n t r a t i o n and t h i s volume, 

12 t h a t you would be a f f e c t i n g an area t h a t would have a 

13 radius of approximately .38 miles i n the i n j e c t i o n zone 

14 a f t e r 30 years. And i n f a c t , i f you c o r r e c t the MAOP f o r 

15 the s p e c i f i c g r a v i t y of the TAG, you would a c t u a l l y come 

16 up w i t h an MAOP of 2,982 versus 2,644. But t h a t r e a l l y , 

17 the MAOP i s not a s i g n i f i c a n t issue once you get above 26 

18 or 2,700, because the w e l l h i s t o r y t h a t we have i n d i c a t e s 

19 t h a t the volumes w i l l be able t o be put away under t h a t 

2 0 o r i g i n a l pressure t h a t i s i n the order. 

21 The next page i s the same software a n a l y s i s , 

22 same a n a l y s i s of the c u r r e n t c o n d i t i o n s t h a t we are 

23 seeing at the p l a n t i n terms of C02 concentrations. You 

24 can see t h a t what has happened, i n e f f e c t , i s t h a t 

25 i n s t e a d of the i n j e c t i o n stream being as i n the previous 
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1 c h a r t , 72 percent C02, 28 percent H2S, what we're 

2 c u r r e n t l y seeing i s more l i k e 82 percent C02 and 18 

3 percent H2S. 

4 And as a r e s u l t of t h a t , we have a s i g n i f i c a n t 

5 increase i n the volume of the TAG. And also, we have a 

6 s i g n i f i c a n t decrease i n the s p e c i f i c g r a v i t y of the TAG, 

7 which would, i n t u r n , as I mentioned, r e s u l t i n an even 

8 higher MAOP, using the D i v i s i o n ' s own c a l c u l a t i o n s . 

9 But the area t h a t i s a f f e c t e d i s greater. 

10 Instead of being .38 miles, i t ' s more l i k e .47 miles or 

11 445 acres, versus the 286 acres or so t h a t would have 

12 been a f f e c t e d under the o r i g i n a l c o n d i t i o n . 

13 The l a s t s l i d e i n t h a t e x h i b i t i s a map which 

14 shows the e f f e c t on the i n j e c t e d formation of what these 

15 two d i f f e r e n t volumes of TAG would be. The e x i s t i n g 

16 Linam AGI i s loc a t e d r i g h t there i n the middle of the 

17 c i r c l e s t h a t you see. The blue c i r c l e i s a one-mile 

18 c i r c l e around the w e l l . 

19 And you can see i n purple there i s one w e l l , 

20 and t h a t i s a plugged w e l l . That i s the only w e l l w i t h i n 

21 t h a t e n t i r e one-mile c i r c l e t h a t penetrates t h i s 

22 i n j e c t i o n zone. You can see t h a t even a f t e r 3 0 years at 

23 the higher TAG r a t e of i n j e c t i o n , the area influ e n c e d i s 

24 s i g n i f i c a n t l y removed from t h a t one w e l l . 

25 So t h i s j u s t gives you a p i c t u r e of what we 
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1- a n t i c i p a t e would be the e f f e c t s on the i n j e c t i o n zone 

2 a f t e r 3 0 years of i n j e c t i n g at those two r a t e s . 

3 Q. Chair B a i l e y asked about whether there was a 

4 step r a t e t e s t performed, and you have a s l i d e i n t h a t 

5 regard. I t should be your next s l i d e . 

6 A. Yes. When we completed the w e l l i n January --

7 December of 2 007 and January 2008, we performed a step 

8 r a t e t e s t . This was not f o r the purpose of t r y i n g t o get 

9 an increase i n the MAOP or anything. I t was merely a 

10 normal t e s t procedure t h a t we use when we complete a w e l l 

11 so t h a t we -can p r e d i c t what i t s i n j e c t i o n performance i s 

12 going t o be over i t s l i f e t i m e . 

13 So what we found -- t h a t step r a t e t e s t 

14 s t a r t e d a t two b a r r e l s a minute of i n j e c t i o n and went up 

15 i n one-barrel-a-minute increments a l l the way up t o nine 

16 b a r r e l s a minute of i n j e c t i o n . And as can you see from 

17 the data from t h a t t e s t , which i s p l o t t e d on both of 

18 those graphs, one i s the a c t u a l steps and the bottomhole 

19 pressure, the next i s the p l o t t i n g out of those data. 

20 And can you see c l e a r l y t h a t even up t o nine b a r r e l s a 

21 minute, t h a t i n j e c t i o n zone showed no break whatsoever. 

22 So i n f a c t , i t j u s t reveals how conservative t h a t MAOP 

23 c a l c u l a t i o n i s . 

24 You can see t h a t the estimated range of 

25 i n j e c t i o n pressures, based on the h i s t o r y t h a t we're 
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-1 seeing, i s somewhere i n t h a t pink range. But you can see 

2 the MAOP does give some f l e x i b i l i t y t h ere, even at the 

3 higher TAG den s i t y , between roughly 2,000 and 2,600 p s i . 

4 So b a s i c a l l y the r e s u l t s of the step t e s t are 

5 confirming what we a n t i c i p a t e d when we d r i l l e d the w e l l . 

6 And t h a t i s t h a t the lower Bone Springs there can take 

7 eve r y t h i n g and the k i t c h e n s i n k . 

8 Q. Based on the data t h a t you reviewed f o r the 

9 Commission today, would you please summarize your 

10 conclusions? 

11 A. Yes. B a s i c a l l y , my conclusions are t h a t the 

12 o r i g i n a l order and the hearing t h a t was held i n f r o n t of 

13 the Commission r e a l l y evaluated i n d e t a i l the data t h a t 

14 were a v a i l a b l e t o determine whether or not the lower Bone 

15 Springs would be an adequate i n j e c t i o n r e s e r v o i r . And 

16 t h a t , i n f a c t , the d r i l l i n g and t e s t i n g and operation of 

17 t h a t w e l l bears out our o r i g i n a l analyses and 

18 expectations. 

19 So the o r i g i n a l order was based on a d e t a i l e d 

2 0 a n a l y s i s which we performed and presented t o the 

21 Commission and t o the D i v i s i o n i n a p u b l i c hearing. The 

22 Commission, as a r e s u l t of t h a t p u b l i c hearing, a r r i v e d 

23 at an order t h a t i n c l u d e d an MAOP of 2,644 at a s p e c i f i c 

24 g r a v i t y of .8, and an u n l i m i t e d i n j e c t i o n r a t e . 

25 The step r a t e t e s t plus the ope r a t i o n of the 
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1 -well- indicates- t h a t at t h i s i n j e c t i o n pressure and t h a t 

2 e s s e n t i a l l y a t the maximum i n j e c t i o n r a t e s t h a t you could 

3 put down t h a t w e l l , i t would s t i l l not have any negative 

4 e f f e c t s on the i n j e c t i o n formation or the caprock. 

5 Furthermore, I concluded t h a t there's no 

6 r e v i s i o n necessary t o the H2S contingency p l a n because of 

7 the TAG volume increase simply because the conc e n t r a t i o n 

8 of H2S has not changed from the o r i g i n a l assumptions. 

9 That's the o n l y t h i n g t h a t gets c a l c u l a t e d i n t o t h a t ROE. 

10 And i n f a c t , a l l we've done i s put more C02 i n t o the 

11 w e l l . 

12 And the i n j e c t i o n h i s t o r y demonstrates t h a t 

13 the r e s e r v o i r i s an e x c e l l e n t r e s e r v o i r and has ample 

14 cap a c i t y t o s a f e l y c o n t a i n t h i s H2S and C02. 

15 Q. Let me ask you, i f i t was determined, based on 

16 some l a t e r i n f o r m a t i o n about the volumes of H2S 

17 in c r e a s i n g beyond what was a n t i c i p a t e d i n the contingency 

18 plan , how i s t h a t handled? How i s an H2S contingency 

19 plan amended and processed i n the D i v i s i o n ? 

20 A. I f DCP should note t h a t the i n l e t 

21 c o n c e n t r a t i o n -- average i n l e t c o n c e n t r a t i o n of .57 MOL 

22 percent of H2S was t o change d r a m a t i c a l l y , increase 

23 d r a m a t i c a l l y , then -- or increase on an average basis, 

24 then they would have t o approach the D i v i s i o n and say, 

25 you know, " I t h i n k i t ' s a p p ropriate t o amend t h i s H2S 
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1 contingency plan and r e - c a l c u l a t e the-ROE- and make sure 

2 t h a t i f the ROE increases because of increased 

3 concentration of H2S, t h a t appropriate procedures are 

4 included i n t h a t H2S contingency plan t o n o t i f y people 

5 t h a t could be a f f e c t e d . " 

6 And t h a t ' s an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e procedure t h a t i s 

7 handled d i r e c t l y between the company and the 

8 Environmental Bureau of the D i v i s i o n . 

9 Q. That's not a matter t h a t needs t o go before 

10 the Commission? 

11 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. W i l l approval of DCP's motion be i n the best 

13 i n t e r e s t of conservation, the prevention of waste and the 

14 p r o t e c t i o n of p u b l i c h e a l t h and the environment? 

15 A. Yes, i t w i l l . 

16 Q. Were E x h i b i t s 3 and 4 e i t h e r prepared by you 

17 or compiled under your d i r e c t supervision? 

18 A. They were prepared by me. 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Madam Chair, we'd move the 

20 admission of E x h i b i t s 3 and 4 i n t o evidence. 

21 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Any objection? 

22 MR. BUNTING: No 

23 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Then they are so 

24 admitted. 

25 ( E x h i b i t s 3 and 4 were admi t t ed . ) 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
cb81 C0b7-dfb5-4a40-a64a-a91 ac5509d 18 



1 MS. MUNDS-DRY: - T-hat concludes - my di r e c t - -

2 examination of Mr. G u t i e r r e z . I pass the witness. 

3 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Any cross? 

4 MR. BUNTING: Yes, Madam Chair. 

5 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

6 BY MR. BUNTING: 

7 Q. Mr. Gut i e r r e z , thanks f o r e x p l a i n i n g some of 

8 these numbers. Can I ask you t o exp l a i n a few more? 

9 A. Absolutely. 

10 Q. This i s r e f e r r i n g t o E x h i b i t 4, the f i r s t I 

i 
11 page. So I guess w e ' l l s t a r t r i g h t at the bottom row j 

12 here. I s t h i s what i t looks l i k e , based on the MOL | 

13 percentages of t h i s sample t h a t DCP has taken and based ) 
3 

14 on the Linam Ranch throughput f o r the l a s t month, t h a t 

15 the average throughput of a c i d gas -- t h i s would be gas • 

16 coming out of Linam Ranch -- i s 4.85 m i l l i o n ? 

17 A. Under the c u r r e n t -- t h i s i s t a k i n g i n t o 

18 account the month of June. And based on the i n l e t j 

19 concentrations of C02 and based on the i n l e t ; 

20 concentrations of H2S, i t would have generated j 

21 approximately 4.8 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t of TAG combined. j 

22 As you can see, however, the .89 m i l l i o n cubic ; 
t 

23 f e e t of H2S i s s i g n i f i c a n t l y lower than the number t h a t j 
i 

24 was c a l c u l a t e d i n the o r i g i n a l H2S contingency p l a n j 
25 because aga in , t h i s i s j u s t a r e f l e c t i o n . I t r e f l e c t s I 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
cb81 C0b7-dfb5~4a40-a64a-a91 ac5509d18 



—» _ _ _ _ — _ —.— Rage-75~ 
1 what i s happening i n terms of added GO2 volume t o the - -

2 p l a n t . 

3 Q. I understand. When we t a l k about a c i d gas, 

4 we're t a l k i n g about both C02 and H2S? 

5 A. That's c o r r e c t . Acid gas i s a term t h a t 

6 includes the e n t i r e -- what I c a l l TAG. That means 

7 t r e a t e d a c i d gas. I t includes C02 p r i m a r i l y , H2S; and 

8 then i t may have a t r a c e amount, probably less than 1 

9 percent, of Cl through C6 hydrocarbons mixed i n the 

10 stream. 

11 Q. So a n e g l i g i b l e amount of other things? 

12 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. And so w i t h t h i s -- f e e l f r e e t o check my 

14 math. My c a l c u l a t i o n s could be wrong. But i t looks 

15 l i k e , based on t h i s data f o r the month of June, t h a t the 

16 throughput from Linam Ranch exceeded 4 m i l l i o n on a l l but 

17 three days. 

18 I know you can't do the c a l c u l a t i o n s now. But 

19 given --

20 A. No, no. You can't r e a l l y make t h a t conclusion 

21 from these numbers. Let me e x p l a i n why. Because the 

22 a c t u a l amount of TAG -- f i r s t of a l l , there's a 

23 d i f f e r e n c e between throughput f o r Linam Ranch, which i s 

24 what you're l o o k i n g a t here, and TAG. 

25 This throughput i s the t o t a l gas passing 
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1 through the p l a n t . - So- what it-shows i s t h a t i f the 

2 concentrations of H2S and C02 were as shown i n t h a t 

3 an a l y s i s of June 16th f o r every one of these days, then 

4 you would be c o r r e c t . 

5 But the f a c t i s t h a t the C02 concentration 

6 and, f o r t h a t matter, the H2S co n c e n t r a t i o n i n the i n l e t 

7 gas v a r i e s on a day-to-day basis because the p l a n t i s 

8 j u s t a t the r e c e i v i n g end of the g a t h e r i n g system. They 

9 take what they get. 

10 And they do analyze i t on a d a i l y basis or --

11 I'm not c e r t a i n t h a t t h e i r i n l e t gas i s analyzed each and 

12 every day, but I t h i n k i t i s analyzed every several days 

13 or whatever. 

14 And depending on the amount of C02 p r i m a r i l y 

15 i s the biggest determinate of what the end TAG volume 

16 was. But i f you assumed t h a t the numbers from June 16th 

17 a p p l i e d t o every one of the days of t h i s month, you would 

18 be c o r r e c t . 

19 Q. Just f o r the purposes of t h i s e x h i b i t , t h a t ' s 

2 0 what you assumed? 

21 A. I'm sorry? 

22 Q. I t looks l i k e t h a t ' s what you assumed to make 

23 these c a l c u l a t i o n s ? 

24 A. T h a t ' s r i g h t . R e a l l y , the purpose of t h i s 

25 e x h i b i t was t o show under the c u r r e n t s i t u a t i o n what 
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2 i n e f f e c t , under the maximum considerations of the p l a n t , 

3 you'd be l o o k i n g a t a l i t t l e b i t more, a c t u a l l y , than 7 

4 m i l l i o n . I t h i n k i t was 7.02, but i t ' s 7 m i l l i o n , 

5 roughly. 

6 Q. And from your experience, would these 

7 concentrations vary w i l d l y from day t o day? 

8 A. They could. I wouldn't say, "vary widely." 

9 But they could vary from, l e t ' s say, 2.5 percent C02 t o 

10 2.4 percent C02 or 2.3 percent or 2.6 percent. And t h a t 

11 has a s i g n i f i c a n t amount -- when you take t h a t and 

12 m u l t i p l y i t by 156 m i l l i o n , then i t does make a 

13 s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e i n the volume of TAG. 

14 Q. And you s a i d t h i s 2.5 MOL percent i s unusually 

15 high f o r C02? 

16 A. No, I d i d n ' t say i t was unusually high. I 

17 said i t was s i g n i f i c a n t l y higher than what was o r i g i n a l l y 

18 assumed t o be i n the i n l e t stream when the w e l l was 

19 planned s i x years ago. 

20 Q. Are you assuming -- I take i t you're assuming 

21 t h a t there would now be -- the gas t h a t the Linam Ranch 

22 p l a n t i s r e c e i v i n g w i l l be more along the l i n e s of 2.5 

23 MOL percent? 

24 A. Or g r e a t e r . 

25 Q. Then what about .57 percent H2S? I s t ha t - -

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
cb81 C0b7-dfb5-4a40-a64a-a91 ac5509d 18 



Page 78 
1 do you a n t i c i p a t e t h a t changing? 

2 A. The .57 hasn't r e a l l y changed. That was the 

3 o r i g i n a l assumption i n the H2S contingency plan. And 

4 b a s i c a l l y , as Mr. G a r r e t t p o i n t e d out, the new gas t h a t ' s 

5 come o n l i n e i s p r i m a r i l y sour gas because of i t s C02 

6 content. I t has a n e g l i g i b l e H2S content. 

7 So w h i l e t h a t H2S content may vary as w e l l , 

8 and when you look at the p l a n t , depending on which 

9 p o r t i o n s of the g a t h e r i n g system are feeding the p l a n t at 

10 d i f f e r e n t times, t h a t c o n c e n t r a t i o n does change. But the 

11 mix o v e r a l l i n l e t c o n c e n t r a t i o n hasn't v a r i e d much w i t h 

12 respect t o H2S. 

13 Q. Thanks. So I'm going t o move on. I have one 

14 more question about t h i s , down at the bottom row. So you 

15 agree i t ' s c l e a r , at l e a s t on some of these days i n June, 

16 t h a t the throughput from Linam Ranch gas was more than 4 

17 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s of TAG? 

18 A. No, you can't conclude t h a t . Because the only 

19 one you could say anything s p e c i f i c a l l y about would be 

2 0 day t h a t we a c t u a l l y had an i n l e t c o n c e n tration. 

21 I f you look at t h a t day, June 16th, i f you 

22 look e a r l i e r i n t h i s e x h i b i t at the page t h a t has the 

23 component a n a l y s i s , t h a t was done on June 16th. And when 

24 you look at the f l o w r a t e f o r June 16th, t h a t flow r a t e 

25 was o n l y 128 m i l l i o n . So i f you m u l t i p l y the 
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1 concentrations times t h a t throughput/ you would not be — 

2 over 4 m i l l i o n i n TAG f o r t h a t day. 

3 Q. Just under 4 m i l l i o n ? 

4 A. That's r i g h t . . 

5 Q. Assuming t h a t on a given day there were more 

6 than 4 m i l l i o n b a r r e l s , t h a t ' s a l l going t o the i n j e c t i o n 

7 p l a n t ; r i g h t ? 

8 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

9 Q. Okay. There would be no reason t h a t any of 

10 t h a t would be taken out before i t ' s i n j e c t e d ? 

11 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. Okay. Moving on t o page 5 of the e x h i b i t , I 

13 had a question about your term on t h i s bottom row. You 

14 mentioned expansion p r o j e c t . What i s that? 

15 A. Well, the p l a n t i s producing at roughly 160, 

16 100 and -- you know, somewhere between 125, 150, 160 a 

17 day throughput now. And as mentioned by Mr. G a r r e t t , 

18 when t h i s a d d i t i o n a l gas i s taken i n , the p l a n t i s 

19 i n t e n d i n g t o accept t h a t gas, and they are making some 

2 0 m o d i f i c a t i o n s t o expand the p l a n t i n order t o be able t o 

21 take t h a t gas. 

22 And t h a t i s , i n f a c t , why the c a l c u l a t i o n s are 

23 done. And the c a l c u l a t i o n s were o r i g i n a l l y were done on 

24 the basis of 225 m i l l i o n a day throughput. Because a f t e r 

25 a l l those m o d i f i c a t i o n s are done at the p l a n t , they 
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1 ' should" be able t o take 225" m i l l i o n a day. --- -~ 

2 Q. So you are making m o d i f i c a t i o n s t o the 

3 p h y s i c a l p l a n t and, h o p e f u l l y , f o r a maximum of 225 

4 m i l l i o n ? 

5 A. There are no m o d i f i c a t i o n s being made t o the 

6 AGI f a c i l i t y because i t ' s capable of t a k i n g the TAG 

7 anyway. 

8 Q. I t ' s at the Linam Ranch --

9 A. I t ' s at the Linam Ranch Gas Plant t h a t those 

10 m o d i f i c a t i o n s are being made. 

11 Q. What mo d i f i c a t i o n s ? 

12 A. I don't know the s p e c i f i c m o d i f i c a t i o n s . I 

13 t h i n k i t ' s upgrades of the a i m i n g / t r e a t i n g systems, et 

14 cetera. 

15 Q. Then you mentioned the H2S contingency plan 

16 and what would have t o be a -- what would q u a l i f y as a 

17 m a t e r i a l change. And you sa i d a s i g n i f i c a n t increase i n 

18 H2S and what would be a m a t e r i a l change. How much of 

19 increase? 

20 A. I t h i n k one t h a t would e s s e n t i a l l y get you out 

21 of the k i n d of range of u n c e r t a i n t y t h a t e x i s t s i n the 

22 c a l c u l a t i o n . So I ' d say i f you s t a r t e d seeing an average 

23 i n excess of .6 or .62 MOL percent, you know, then t h a t 

24 would r e q u i r e some m o d i f i c a t i o n of the H2S. 

2 5 Q. How much of a pressure change -- how much of a 
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- 1 -change-in- the i n j e c t i o n pressure would -necessitate going-- — 

2 over the p l a n again? 

3 A. None. The pressure i s a b s o l u t e l y i r r e l e v a n t . 

4 Q. Okay. And you're -- so you t a l k e d about the 

5 subsurface movement of t h i s gas a f t e r you i n j e c t i t . I'm 

6 assuming i t r a d i a t e s p r e t t y evenly from i n j e c t i o n ? 

7 A. Not e x a c t l y . The gas i s i n j e c t e d i n a 

8 s u p e r c r i t i c a l s t a t e . I t ' s e s s e n t i a l l y a l i q u i d when i t 

9 enters the formation. However, i t has a lower s p e c i f i c 

10 g r a v i t y than water, and there i s water i n t h a t formation 

11 c u r r e n t l y . There i s -- i t i s sat u r a t e d w i t h s a l i n e 

12 water. 

13 That gas displaces some of t h a t water. I t 

14 also goes i n t o s o l u t i o n i n t o t h a t water, but i t does 

15 displace the water. But t o a c e r t a i n extent, i t over 

16 time r i s e s t o the top of t h a t i n j e c t i o n zone and tends t o 

17 migrate updip, as i t ' s c a l l e d . So those rocks are not 

18 f l a t . They d i p down t o the n o r t h . So i t tends t o 

19 migrate more i n an updip d i r e c t i o n towards the south. 

20 That's why when you see my diagram there, I've 

21 got a k i n d of skewed plume t h a t looks more t r i a n g u l a r 

22 than c i r c u l a r i n shape. That's because the d i p d i r e c t i o n 

23 i s t o the n o r t h . And t h e r e f o r e , over time, t h a t would 

24 migrate more t o the south. 

25 Q. I t sounds l i k e i t ' s f a i r l y unpredictable. 
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2 u n p r e d i c t a b l e . I would j u s t say t h a t you have t o do a 

3 d e t a i l e d r e s e r v o i r model t o be able t o c a l c u l a t e what 

4 t h a t exact plume would be. But you know, I t h i n k a 

5 r a d i a l assumption i s a p r e t t y good one. 

6 I want t o emphasize one t h i n g about t h i s . 

7 This i s also a conservative assumption i n terms of the 

8 area t h a t would be a f f e c t e d , because we d i d not do a 

9 simple model t o j u s t displace the water. This takes i n t o 

10 account i r r e d u c i b l e water s a t u r a t i o n of 45 percent i n 

11 t h a t lower Bone Springs formation. So i t ' s saying we're 

12 not being able t o displace a l l of the water. We can only 

13 dis p l a c e about 55 percent. Therefore, the area t h a t i s 

14 a f f e c t e d i s gr e a t e r than i f you d i d a simple plug model. 

15 Q. How would I be wrong i n assuming t h a t t h i s --

16 based on your 30-year assumption, t h a t t h i s i n j e c t i o n 

17 would stay, would not migrate underneath the land of 

18 other p r o p e r t y owners? 

19 A. Well, the i n j e c t i o n c a l c u l a t i o n s and the 

20 understanding t h a t we have of the r e s e r v o i r i s p r e t t y 

21 good i n t h i s area. We've had seismic data t h a t we've 

22 looked at where we i d e n t i f i e d t here are s t r u c t u r a l 

23 f e a t u r e s , and we understand what the d i p of the formation 

24 i s . So I b e l i e v e t h a t my model i s a good approximation 

25 of what t h a t plume i s going t o look l i k e a f t e r 30 years. 
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1 MR. BUNTING: Those are a l l my questions-. -j 

2 Thank you. j 

3 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Commissioner Dawson? 

4 EXAMINATION j 

5 BY COMMISSIONER DAWSON: j 

6 Q. When I look at your throughput f o r the Linam j 

7 Ranch f o r June, where you have the d a i l y throughput east j 

8 and west inlets and combined, the standard cubic feet per \ 

9 day at the -- l i k e the f i r s t p a r t of the month, i t looked 

10 l i k e the combined throughput was roughly 170 t o 180 from : 

11 roughly June 7 t h through the 12th, and then i t decreased. 

12 I s t h a t decrease due t o the amount of -- I i 

13 mean the w e l l s being depleted, maybe? What's t h a t j 

14 decrease? j 

15 A. No. There i s some v a r i a t i o n normally anyway. f 

16 But the c o n s i s t e n t decrease there i s the attempt of DCP j 

17 t o stay w i t h i n the l i m i t s of the TAG by asking producers j 

18 t o shut t h e i r w e l l s i n or by s h u t t i n g w e l l s i n . | 

19 Q. So you expect t h a t would be going back up t o j 

20 roughly 170 t o 180 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t per day i f those 1 

21 w e l l s are brought back on l i n e ? jj 

22 A. As Mr. G a r r e t t t e s t i f i e d , I t h i n k he said j 

23 they've got about 25 m i l l i o n a day shut i n r i g h t now plus 

24 another eight million coming on. So that right there is \ 

25 33 m i l l i o n , and t h a t Avalon p l a y i s coming on p r e t t y 
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- 1 heavy: So T would a n t i c i p a t e - t h a t , you know, u l t i m a t e l y -

2 the p l a n t w i l l reach a throughput t h a t would be i n excess 

3 of 200 m i l l i o n a day. 

4 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: Thank you. 

5 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Commissioner Balch? 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I have a couple of 

7 questions. 

8 EXAMINATION 

9 BY COMMISSIONER BALCH: 

10 Q. What i s the chemistry of the r e s e r v o i r ? I s 

11 there any o i l s a t u r a t i o n ? 

12 A. There's no o i l s a t u r a t i o n , and i t ' s not a 

13 sand. I t ' s a carbonate. I t ' s a d e t r i t a l carbonate. 

14 Q. What i s the formation d i r e c t l y above that? 

15 You c a l l e d i t the lower Bone Springs? 

16 A. Yeah, I c a l l i t the lower Bone Springs. 

17 Q. I s t h a t the second or t h i r d carbonate? 

18 A. C o r r e l a t i n g those over t h a t area i s a l i t t l e 

19 d i f f i c u l t . But I t h i n k i t would be -- l e t me r e f e r --

2 0 I've got a l o g here. Yeah, i t looks t o me l i k e i t i s the 

21 t h i r d carbonate i n t h a t -- e i t h e r the basal p o r t i o n of 

22 the second carbonate or the t h i r d . 

23 Q. What's the formation d i r e c t l y above that? 

24 A. Let me r e f e r back t o the o r i g i n a l hearing 

25 C-108. I b e l i e v e i t ' s the Abo there. Let me j u s t make 
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1 sure. • - • - - .... 

2 I t ' s e s s e n t i a l l y the lower p o r t i o n of the Yeso 

3 and Abo below the Drinkard. We're i n e s s e n t i a l l y the 

4 second Bone Spring carbonate and the t h i r d Bone Spring 

5 carbonate and a l i t t l e b i t of the second Bone Spring 

6 sand. But t h a t i s deeper i n t o the basin o f f of the 

7 s h e l f . 

8 I n t h i s area, we've b a s i c a l l y got the 

9 Yeso/Clearfork immediately above i t . And i f you wanted 

10 t o look at i t i n more d e t a i l , t h i s i s a v a i l a b l e i n the 

11 o r i g i n a l C-108 a p p l i c a t i o n . There's a cross-section t h a t 

12 shows the s t r a t i g r a p h y . 

13 Q. You have a 72 percent C02 mix. What are the 

14 o v e r a l l impacts on o b j e c t i v i t y going t o be as you 

15 increase your C02 mix? 

16 A. Two t h i n g s . You're going t o wind up w i t h a 

17 lower d e n s i t y TAG. So you're going t o wind up w i t h a 

18 s i t u a t i o n where, you know, your i n j e c t i o n pressure at the 

19 surface i s going t o go up a l i t t l e b i t because of the 

20 lower d e n s i t y of TAG. 

21 But i n terms of the i n j e c t i o n e f f e c t s on the 

22 r e s e r v o i r i t s e l f , what we would a n t i c i p a t e over the time 

23 p e r i o d of t h i s i n j e c t i o n i s t h a t you're going t o a c t u a l l y 

24 open up some more secondary p o r o s i t y as a r e s u l t of 

25 e s s e n t i a l l y an ongoing a c i d j o b i n t o the carbonate 
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1 p o r t i o n s of these d e t r i t a i carbonates-. • -

2 Q. The Avalon Shale, as you noted, i s a 

3 developing play? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. And a c t u a l l y probably g e t t i n g q u i t e a b i t 

6 bigger? Over a number of years, t h i s could impact the 

7 r a t i o of H2S t o C02? That's why I'm asking the question 

8 about the C02 r a t i o . 

9 What i s the p a r t i n g pressure of the Bone 

10 Spring? Do you have an estimate on t h a t , or has anybody 

11 done any mechanical studies? 

12 A. Based on the step r a t e t e s t , we haven't gotten 

13 anywhere near the p a r t i n g pressure of the formation. But 

14 we a n t i c i p a t e t h a t the p a r t i n g pressure i s going t o be i n 

15 excess -- b a s i c a l l y , from our step r a t e t e s t , we took the 

16 r a t e a l l the way up t o nine b a r r e l s a minute, w i t h a 

17 bottomhole pressure of about 6,500 p s i . And the i n i t i a l 

18 r e s e r v o i r pressure was 3,2 62, and we hadn't reached the 

19 p a r t i n g pressure y e t . So I ' d say i t ' s going t o be i n 

20 excess of the surface pressure of 31, 3,200 at l e a s t . 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: No f u r t h e r questions. 

22 Thank you. 

23 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: I have several. 

24 

25 j 
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• 1 • - EXAMINATION • " 

2 BY CHAIRMAN BAILEY: 

3 Q. I f we go back t o the o r i g i n a l order, l e t ' s go 

4 one by one through the requirements t o ensure t h a t a l l 

5 the other requirements have been met f o r the o r i g i n a l 

6 order. Let's s t a r t on page 5. Yes, you are authorized 

7 t o d r i l l , which you d i d do. 

8 A l l steps were taken t o ensure t h a t only the 

9 i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l was impacted; i s t h a t correct? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. Was the w e l l s u b s t a n t i a l l y constructed i n 

12 accordance w i t h the d e s c r i p t i o n f o r the i n s p e c t i o n w e l l 

13 data sheet? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. During the d r i l l i n g operations, d i d the 

16 operator monitor the w e l l f o r hydrocarbon shows? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. Were copies of the l o g of the complete w e l l 

19 and other items i n the l e t t e r d e l i v e r e d t o the D i v i s i o n ' s 

20 Hobbs D i s t r i c t O f f i c e? 

21 A. Yes. A l l t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n was d e l i v e r e d as 

22 p a r t of the C-105. 

23 Q. Was a pressure t e s t conducted from the surface 

24 t o the p a c k e r - s e t t i n g depth? 

25 A. Yes. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
cb81 C0b7-dfb5-4a40-a64a-a91 ac5509d 18 



_ . _ Page.8a„ 

-1 • Q. That order,--Paragraph Number F.,. also . 

2 references t o at l e a s t once every f i v e years. But since 

3 you have been very i n v o l v e d w i t h the D i v i s i o n and i n i t s 

4 cur r e n t requirements f o r AGI w e l l s , they have changed 

5 t h a t requirement t o every two years? 

6 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. I s there an o b j e c t i o n from you or the company 

8 t o change o r d e r i n g Paragraph F t o r e f l e c t the cur r e n t 

9 requirements of two years? 

10 A. I can't speak f o r DCP. I t h i n k i t ' s a 

11 reasonable requirement. 

12 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I can get c o n f i r m a t i o n 

13 from my c l i e n t s here on the lunch break or whenever we 

14 take a break, i f t h a t helps. 

15 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Please. Thank you. 

16 Q. (By Chairman Bailey) The casing-tubing 

17 annulus was loaded w i t h an i n e r t f l u i d ? 

18 A. Yes, ma'am. 

19 Q. I s the gas p r o p e r l y dehydrated? 
20 A. Yes. That goes t o one of the questions t h a t 

21 you r a i s e d e a r l i e r . There's nothing else t h a t ' s been put 

22 i n t o -- t h i s i s a dry gas i n j e c t i o n w e l l , so there i s no 

23 wastewater or anything else. This i s s t r i c t l y dry gas 

24 i n j e c t i o n . 

25 Q. Thank you f o r t h a t c l a r i f i c a t i o n . And are 
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1 i n j e c t i o n r a t e s and pressures recorded on a- continuous 

2 basis? 

3 A. They are. 

4 Q. Was the system equipped w i t h a pressure 

5 l i m i t i n g device? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. Paragraph M concerning the discharge permit i s 

8 no longer an issue, since the D i v i s i o n has released you 

9 from t h a t requirement; i s t h a t correct? 

10 A. That's my understanding. 

11 Q. An H2S contingency plan has been approved by 

12 the D i v i s i o n ? 

13 A. That i s c o r r e c t . And as a matter of f a c t , I 

14 b e l i e v e t h a t i t has been modified several times simply 

15 because the D i v i s i o n has gone from t h e i r o l d Rule 118, 

16 which was what was i n place here, t o Rule 11. And the 

17 most recent plan i s dated November 2009, and complies 

18 w i t h Rule 11 requirements. 

19 Q. And the other requirements concerning alarms 

2 0 have e i t h e r been accomplished or an attempt has been made 

21 t o accomplish? 

22 A. Yes. The issue of the alarm was discussed 

23 e a r l i e r . And DCP does have systems i n place and alarms 

24 and signs w i t h f l a s h i n g alarms on the paved road, as w e l l 

25 as on the d i r t road n o r t h of the s i t e . 
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1 . . Q. The gas p i p e l i n e was b u r i e d at l e a s t . t h r e e 

2 f e e t below the surface; i s t h a t correct? 

3 A. That i s my understanding. 

4 Q. You have submitted t o the D i v i s i o n w r i t t e n 

5 evidence of s a t i s f a c t i o n of the co n d i t i o n s precedent t o 

6 i n j e c t i o n ? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Monthly r e p o r t s are being sent t o the 

9 Div i s i o n ? 

10 A. Yes. I n f a c t , t h a t ' s where the pressure and 

11 volume data t h a t I used i n my anal y s i s came from, the OCD 

12 o n l i n e C-115 r e p o r t s . 

13 Q. For the non-technical people, i s there any 

14 possible method where the carbon di o x i d e can be changed 

15 i n t o carbon monoxide? 

16 A. No. 

17 Q. Just t o r e l i e v e t h a t a n x i e t y t h a t some people 

18 may have, was the subsurface equipped w i t h an auto s a f e t y 

19 valve? 

20 A. Yes. I t ' s set i n the t u b i n g . 

21 Q. And i s t h a t t u b i n g l i n e r f i b e r g l a s s ? 

22 A. Yes, even though t h a t was f r a n k l y o v e r k i l l , 

23 because i t i s a dry i n j e c t i o n w e l l . But we d i d l i n e i t 

24 w i t h f i b e r g l a s s . 

25 Q. So the f i n a l question i s , there's some 
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1 confusion over e x a c t l y what DCP i s requesting. I s i t a n — 

2 extension of a u t h o r i t y t o t e m p o r a r i l y i n j e c t a c i d gas, or 

3 i s i t only asking t h a t paragraph N i n the o r i g i n a l order 

4 be removed so t h a t DCP may request an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

5 order a u t h o r i z i n g DCP t o commence permanent i n j e c t i o n of 

6 ac i d gas pursuant t o the o r i g i n a l order? 

7 A. I don't know the l e g a l i m p l i c a t i o n s , but I ' l l 

8 answer i t as best I know. I t h i n k what DCP i s requesting 

9 i s the removal -- the acknowledgement i n the o r i g i n a l 

10 order of the removal of the discharge plan requirement, 

11 and then the va c a t i n g of the temporary order t h a t 

12 r e s t r i c t s the i n j e c t i o n r a t e t o 4 m i l l i o n a day and the 

13 pressure t o 1,800, and t o r e t u r n t o the appropriate 

14 numbers t h a t were included i n the o r i g i n a l order 

15 regarding i n j e c t i o n -- maximum allowable i n j e c t i o n 

16 pressure and r a t e . 

17 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Counsel, does t h a t --

18 MS. BADA: I guess my question i s -- I ' l l 

19 say i t t h i s way. The temporary order i s i n e f f e c t u n t i l 

20 we have a hearing before the Commission. I s DCP asking 

21 f o r another extension, or are they merely asking f o r N t o 

22 be removed? 

23 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We're merely asking f o r 

24 paragraph N t o be removed so t h a t we may proceed t o get 

25 our a d m i n i s t r a t i v e order as i t contemplates i n t h a t 
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1 paragraph Q under - the-, o r i g i n a l order . _ 

2 We've always understood t h a t temporary order 

3 t o be j u s t t h a t , temporary. So once we can submit 

4 w r i t t e n evidence of s a t i s f a c t i o n , meeting a l l the 

5 cond i t i o n s t o the D i v i s i o n , we can o b t a i n our 

6 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e order a l l o w i n g us t o i n j e c t per the terms 

7 of the o r i g i n a l order. 

8 So I don't know, Counsel, how you view t h i s , 

9 but I don't see the need t o vacate t h a t t e m p o r a r i l y , 

10 ne c e s s a r i l y . We are j u s t merely requesting t h a t 

11 paragraph N be removed by the Commission so t h a t we may 

12 proceed t o get our a d m i n i s t r a t i v e order from the 

13 D i v i s i o n . 

14 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Thank you. I have no 

15 f u r t h e r questions.. 

16 Any r e d i r e c t ? Or s h a l l we hold t h a t u n t i l 

17 a f t e r lunch? 

18 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I don't have any, i f t h a t 

19 helps. 

2 0 MR. BUNTING: I have one follow-up. 

21 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Okay. 

22 RECROSS EXAMINATION 

23 BY MR. BUNTING: 

24 Q. Based on your experience w i t h c a l c u l a t i n g t h i s 

25 d i s p e r s i o n i n the hydrogen s u l f i d e cont ingency plans , do 
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1 you t h i n k i n the f u t u r e there should be a l a r g e r b u f f e r I 

2 zone around these types of wells? 

3 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Objection, c a l l s f o r a ; 

4 l e g a l conclusion. 

5 Q. I'm not asking f o r a l e g a l conclusion. I'm ' 
1 
j 

6 j u s t asking i n your experience w i t h the hydrogen gas. j 

j 

7 A. Ab s o l u t e l y not. I n f a c t , I t h i n k t h a t the j 

8 c a l c u l a t i o n , the way i t ' s done, i s p a t e n t l y --my own j 

9 perception i s t h a t i t ' s p a t e n t l y r i d i c u l o u s because i t j 

10 can't occur. You cannot have an instantaneous release of ! 

j 
11 the e n t i r e throughput of the p l a n t . I t h i n k t h a t i s so j 

12 g r o s s l y conservative now as t o not be r e a l i s t i c . I 

13 Q. But maybe not going so much on the J 

14 c a l c u l a t i o n , but j u s t based on the sa f e t y issues t h a t are j 

15 inv o l v e d i n these types of plants? 

16 A. No. Because I t h i n k t h a t there are j 

17 s i g n i f i c a n t s a f e t y procedures t h a t are b u i l t i n t o the | 

18 ope r a t i o n of these f a c i l i t i e s t h a t are s u f f i c i e n t t o > 

19 p r o t e c t the p u b l i c and are designed t o provide n o t i c e and 
i 

2 0 p r o t e c t the p u b l i c i n an ROE t h a t i s much l a r g e r than j 

21 what a c t u a l l y could occur. J 

22 Q. Do you agree t h a t a l l those safeguards should 

23 be in place and should be monitored and maintained so \ 

24 t h a t they w i l l be e f f e c t i v e i n the event of a release or 
25 some event? 
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1 . A. . I be l i e v e t h a t the .safety, .features pf the H2S 

2 contingency plan and the s a f e t y operations should be 

3 conducted as approved, yes. 

4 MR. BUNTING: Okay. Thank you. 

5 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: You may be excused. 

6 Let's break f o r lunch and r e t u r n at 1:15. 

7 (A lunch recess was taken.) 

8 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: We're back on the 

9 record. A l l three Commissioners have returned, so we 

10 s t i l l do have a quorum f o r the Commission. 

11 We had j u s t concluded the testimony of A l b e r t o 

12 Gu t i e r r e z . Do you have any other witnesses? 

13 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No. That concludes our 

14 d i r e c t case. 

15 MR. BUNTING: Madam Chair, we have a 

16 witness, Randy Smith. 

17 RANDY SMITH 

18 Having been f i r s t duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

19 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

2 0 BY MR. BUNTING: 

21 Q. Could you please s t a t e your f u l l name? 

22 A. Randy Smith. 

23 Q. And where do you l i v e , Mr. Smith? 

24 A. I l i v e i n Hobbs, New Mexico. 

25 Q. What do you do f o r a l i v i n g ? 
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1 A. I work f o r a gas company. I've worked there - --

2 f o r -- I'm s t a r t i n g my 31st year. I pump n a t u r a l gas. 

3 That's what I've done f o r 3 0 years. 

4 Q. And what i s your j o b t i t l e ? 

5 A. They c a l l me a mechanic. They -- but I 

6 a c t u a l l y operate the compressor s t a t i o n . I do some 

7 environmental work f o r my company. I work on 

8 compressors, overhaul them, whatever, a general 

9 maintenance person. 

10 Q. I n the course of your work, have you had any 

11 experience w i t h H2S gas? 

12 A. Yes. We -- my company i s the one t h a t takes 

13 the gas from l i k e Linam, and then we t r a n s p o r t i t t o 

14 C a l i f o r n i a , t o Texas, wherever they need i t . 

15 Q. So do you have -- through your work, do you 

16 have t r a i n i n g t h a t involves --

17 A. Yes. Once a year we go over, you know, the 10 

18 p a r t s per m i l l i o n . We have Delmar instruments t h a t 

19 a c t u a l l y monitor the gas and make sure t h a t these p l a n t s 

20 do not exceed a c e r t a i n l i m i t of H2S. 

21 Q. You sa i d 10 p a r t s per m i l l i o n . I s t h a t a 

22 s a f e t y standard? 

23 A. Yeah. I heard them t a l k about the 10 par t s 

24 per m i l l i o n . We do not allow f o u r p a r t s per m i l l i o n t o 

25 come i n t o our p i p e l i n e . 
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.1 . - CHAIRMAN BAILEY: . Can .1... ask. a question . . . 

2 f i r s t ? What company do you work f o r , and are you here 

3 r e p r e s e n t i n g your company? 

4 THE WITNESS: No, no. I d i d not want t o 

5 mention my company's name because I -- the only reason 

6 I'm t e l l i n g you t h i s i s so t h a t you know I do have some 

7 experience. I'm not j u s t up here --my case --go ahead, 

8 Tom. 

9 MR. BUNTING: Mr. Smith i s not here 

10 r e p r e s e n t i n g h i s company. He's j u s t here i n h i s 

11 i n d i v i d u a l capacity. And we t r y t o keep the name of h i s 

12 employer out of t h i s because he's not speaking f o r them 

13 as a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e , i f i t pleases the Commissioner. 

14 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: A l l r i g h t . Thank you. 

15 THE WITNESS: I don't mind, you know. I 

16 j u s t thought i t was not r e l e v a n t . 

17 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Okay. 

18 Q. (By Mr. Bunting) So you were t a l k i n g about 

19 s a f e t y t r a i n i n g . Do you have H2S t r a i n i n g a t a l l ? 

2 0 A. Yes. Once a year we go through the H2S -- I 

21 know the dangers of i t . And l i k e I said, we have l i t t l e 

22 instruments t h a t -- when we are de a l i n g w i t h these 

23 p l a n t s , l i k e Linam or F r o n t i e r or any of these p l a n t s , 

24 t h a t t h i s instrument w i l l go o f f i f the H2S gets where 

25 i t ' s too high f o r safe working, and we can c l e a r out of 
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— 1 - there. --- _ . 

2 Q. So you've had sa f e t y t r a i n i n g . What about H2S 

3 as a waste or co r r o s i o n t o the p i p e l i n e s ? 

4 A. Like I said, we do not l e t four p a r t s per 

5 m i l l i o n i n t o our p i p e l i n e . We close i t o f f , because i t ' s 

6 very c o r r o s i v e . And even the C02 mixed w i t h water, i t 

7 becomes very c o r r o s i v e , too. We watch a l l these l i m i t s . 

8 We have gas q u a l i t y instruments t h a t are c o n s t a n t l y 

9 monitoring what's going on w i t h a l l these p l a n t s . 

10 MR. BUNTING: Okay. Thank you, s i r . 

11 May I approach? 

12 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

13 Q. (By Mr; Bunting) Let me hand you two 

14 e x h i b i t s . One i s p a r t of DCP E x h i b i t 4, and the second 

15 i s marked as Smith E x h i b i t A. 

16 Can you please put a b i g X r i g h t where your 

17 house i s i n r e l a t i o n t o t h i s ? 

18 A. (Witness complies.) 

19 Q. And you can j u s t hold up i t so everyone can 

20 see. 

21 A. (Witness compl ies . ) 

22 Q. So how f a r away i s your l and f rom AGI 's - -

23 A. My land or my house? 

24 Q. How f a r i s your land? 

25 A. My land i s 600 f e e t . 
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•1 - -Q-. ---- -How f a r away i s your house?- • --

2 A. I t ' s a mile and a quart e r . 

3 Q. I n what d i r e c t i o n ? 

4 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Can you t e l l us what 

5 e x h i b i t you're r e f e r r i n g to? 

6 MR. BUNTING: I'm sorr y . Yes. I t ' s page 

7 5, I b e l i e v e , of DCP's E x h i b i t 4. 

8 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I t h i n k i t ' s i n E x h i b i t 3. 

9 MR. BUNTING: Okay. 

10 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Thank you. 

11 Q. (By Mr. Bunting) Would you show t h a t again 

12 now? Just because everyone has i t from f r o n t of them. 

13 A. I t ' s j u s t s t r a i g h t n o r t h of the H2S -- I t h i n k 

14 i t ' s marked i n the l i t t l e blue -- i t was on t h i s one. 

15 But do you see the X? Can you see the X where I've got 

16 i t ? 

17 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Can you give us some 

18 k i n d of v e r b a l d e s c r i p t i o n , so the r e p o r t e r could --

19 Q. (By Mr. Bunting) Can you describe where you 

20 drew t h a t X i n r e l a t i o n t o where DCP's --

21 A. Yeah. I t ' s i n Section 18, and i t ' s i n the 

22 southeast q u a r t e r of Section 18. 

23 Q. Thank you, s i r . Which way does the p r e v a i l i n g 

24 wind blow? 

25 A. Cons tan t ly south . I t comes f rom the south and 
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1 b l o w s - r i g h t towards my - house. -

2 Q. So the i n j e c t i o n w e l l being t o the north? 

3 A. I t i s s t r a i g h t south of my house. 

4 Q. And so I'm going t o ask you some of your 

5 impressions based on your personal observations of the 

6 operations of DCP's p l a n t . F i r s t of a l l , i s there a 

7 f l a r e at the AGI well? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Have you observed i t f l a r i n g ? 

10 A. Constantly. 

11 Q. How o f t e n i s constantly? 

12 A. Well, I hoped t h a t we could get some of the 

13 operating records. But I'm seeing t h i s f o u r , f i v e times 

14 a week, at l e a s t . 

15 Q. Does there seem t o be a p a t t e r n t o the 

16 f l a r i n g ? 

17 A. I t seems t o go down when i t ' s very cold, when 

18 i t ' s very hot, when i t ' s r a i n y . No. I t ' s j u s t a l l the 

19 time. They're having t r o u b l e . 

2 0 Q. But i t happens freq u e n t l y ? 

21 A. I t does. 

22 Q. What about alarms? For what reason would 

23 alarms go o f f ? 

24 A. The alarms would be H2S re lease . 

25 Q. Do you ever hear those? 
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1 . - ... A. . Yes. Twice... _ . 

2 Q. You remember two times? Can you e x p l a i n t h a t 

3 t o us? When was the f i r s t time? 

4 A. The f i r s t time was the f i r s t w i n t e r a f t e r they 

5 went i n t o o p e r a t i o n . They must have froze completely 

6 o f f , because the whole p l a n t was alarming and sirens 

7 going o f f . I t was the whole p l a n t , the H2S p l a n t . 

8 Q. How long d i d t h a t l a s t ? 

9 A. Several hours. 

10 Q. What response d i d you see? 

11 A. I never heard a word from them. As a matter 

12 of f a c t , I've never been contacted by DCP on any alarms. 

13 Q. Okay. You say there was a second alarm. Do 

14 you remember tha t ? 

15 A. Yes. We were over, me and my w i f e and my son 

16 and my granddaughter, r i g h t out i n the middle of the farm 

17 f i e l d . 

18 Q. On your land? 

19 A. Yes, on my land. And I n o t i c e d there's a 

2 0 s i r e n going o f f over t h e r e . And there's no pickups. 

21 There's nobody working on i t . 

22 Q. You're t a l k i n g about a t the well? 

23 A. At the H2S i n j e c t i o n w e l l s i t e . There was 

24 nobody working on i t . And I deal w i t h Excel Energy, and 

25 so I c a l l e d one of the guys I know over there, and said, 
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1 "Have -you heard anything? I'm -right out i n the middle of i 

2 t h i s f i e l d . " And I would say where I was was maybe an 

3 e i g h t h of a mile from t h a t p l a n t . 

4 And he c a l l e d , and c a l l e d me back and said, 

5 "They say they have a problem, and they t h i n k i t i s an 

6 instrument f a i l u r e . " That was a l l I got. 

7 Q. So you're t a l k i n g about a -- t h i s i s a message 

8 t h a t was r e l a t e d t o you from? 

9 A. That came from Linam's c o n t r o l room. 

10 Q. Okay. 

11 A. And the alarm went on the whole n i g h t , u n t i l 

12 the next day. And they f i n a l l y -- maybe they got the 

13 p a r t t o f i x t h a t . I don't know what happened. They 

14 f i n a l l y f i x e d i t the next day. 

15 Q. I t e v e n t u a l l y stopped? 

16 A. (Witness nods head.) 

17 Q. How long was t h a t ? 

18 A. That would be almost 24 hours. 

19 Q. What about odors? Can you smell anything 

2 0 coming from the plant? 

21 A. Yes. I do smell S02 a l o t w i t h those winds, 

22 the way they -- e s p e c i a l l y a t n i g h t . Things get calmer. 

23 The winds get calmer. And i t j u s t c a r r i e s t h a t S02. And 

24 my house i s a mile and a q u a r t e r . I t ' s j u s t l i k e these 

25 f i r e s i n the f o r e s t . That smoke i s going t o come down 
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1 -somewhere, and i t comes r i g h t ...down .on my. property,, on my . | 

2 house. j 

3 Q. Mr. Smith, you said you smelled S02. How do ':> 

4 you know t h a t ' s what i t was? 

5 A. At one time, Linam -- which they are three 

6 miles away from me -- was f l a r i n g . And i t made me s i c k 

7 at my stomach. The smell was so t h i c k . I t must have 

8 j u s t come r i g h t down on my -- I als o have a set of c a t t l e 

9 pens th e r e . And i t ' s S02. Now, i f i t had been H2S, I ' d 

10 be dead. 

11 Q. So from your experience e a r l i e r w i t h S02, you 

12 b e l i e v e t h i s i s what i t was? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Anything else? Have there been any effects on i 

15 your water supply? 

16 A. Yeah. About two months ago or maybe three j 

17 months ago, we put i n a t r a i l e r house west of the ! 

18 i n j e c t i o n w e l l s i t e . ' 

19 Q. Maybe since you have the map, you could show 

2 0 everyone. 

21 A. Yeah. I t ' s what I c a l l my barn area. Let me 

22 see i f I can f i n d i t . I t h i n k i t ' s r i g h t -- no. I t ' s j 

23 hard t o t e l l on t h i s map. 

24 Q. Maybe you could put a B next t o t h a t and ! 

25 describe where i t i s i n r e l a t i o n t o the w e l l . 
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1 A. I t i s i n Section 25,- and i t i s i n the i t 

2 would be the east side of the n o r t h p a r t of Section --

3 the n o r t h quarter, I'm p r e t t y sure. I can't r e a l l y t e l l 

4 where t h i s s e c t i o n -- but i t i s i n 25. I t ' s k i n d of --

5 yeah, t h a t ' s where i t ' s at i n the quarter. 

6 Q. We'll move t h i s i n t o evidence l a t e r . So i f 

7 you'd l a b e l i t , t h a t ' s f i n e . 

8 I i n t e r r u p t e d you. You were t a l k i n g about a 

9 w e l l . 

10 A. Yeah. We put t h i s t r a i l e r house i n there, and 

11 we are g e t t i n g a s u l f u r smell out of t h i s w e l l . So we 

12 thought maybe i t ' s b a c t e r i a . So we even c a l l e d Lea 

13 Water, and we t a l k e d t o them about i t . And they said. 

14 "Pour some bleach down i n there, and t h a t w i l l -- i f i t ' s 

15 b a c t e r i a , t h a t w i l l k i l l i t . " 

16 Well, i t got b e t t e r . But now i t ' s come back 

17 again. And I smell i t i n the k i t c h e n of the t r a i l e r 

18 house. When I t u r n the faucet on, there i t i s . And i t 

19 i s s u l f u r . I got some on my hands. And I went back 

2 0 home, and i t was l i k e i t was on my s k i n . I could s t i l l 

21 smell i t , even w i t h the --no water on my hands. 

22 Q. Was t h i s p r e t t y r e c e n t l y ? 

23 A. Yes, yes. 

24 Q. Can you g ive us dates? When d i d you f i r s t 

25 n o t i c e the smell? 
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1 A. About a month ago. . . _ 

2 Q. You say you had i t t e s t e d . When was that? 

3 A. That's been l a s t week. She -- there's no 

4 b a c t e r i a there i n t h a t w e l l . So now we need t o 

5 i n v e s t i g a t e t h i s f u r t h e r and see what's going on. 

6 Q. This i s a water well? How deep i s i t ? 

7 A. I t ' s about 22 0 f e e t . Most of those w e l l s , you 

8 h i t water around 60 f e e t over there, and then t h e y ' l l go 

9 on down t o 200 f e e t . 

10 Q. Based on your experience, i s t h i s what you'd 

11 expect i n terms of o p e r a t i o n a l r e l i a b i l i t y f o r a p l a n t 

12 l i k e t h i s ? 

13 A. I d i d n ' t t h i n k they'd be down as much as they 

14 are. You know, I ha r d l y ever see anybody over there, 

15 except when they're down. And so I d i d n ' t t h i n k t h a t --

16 I run e l e c t r i c equipment i n my job, and we can go two or 

17 three months without l o s i n g a u n i t . And then I'm seeing 

18 t h i s t h i n g -- every three or fou r days, they're having, 

19 you know, t r o u b l e --

2 0 Q. When you say, "down" --

21 A. - - every t ime I t u r n around. 

22 Q. - - what e x a c t l y do you mean? 

23 A. They ' re f l a r i n g over t h e r e . And then i n about 

24 an hour o r so, here come some pickups and t h e y ' l l s t a r t 

25 work ing on i t . And sometimes i n an hour or so, they w i l l 
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1 • -have i t back up and going-;- - • - - - ' -

2 Q. Do you t h i n k these problems are --do you 

3 t h i n k these c o n d i t i o n s are going t o get any b e t t e r or 

4 worse or the same i f the volume being i n j e c t e d increases? 

5 A. Just from my experience running compression 

6 equipment, the harder you work i t , the more problems 

7 you 1 re going t o have. 

8 And 1 1ve seen when the temperature down there 

9 was over 100 degrees every day i t was down. Every day 

10 t h a t the temperature was over 100 degrees, t h a t p l a n t was 

11 down and i t was f l a r i n g , and i t would take them two, 

12 three hours. And i t seemed l i k e i t was very 

13 temperature -- i t had something t o do w i t h the 

14 temperature. 

15 So I'm t h i n k i n g -- I don't know, j u s t from my 

16 experience, t h a t maybe t h e i r compressor i s g e t t i n g hot 

17 and s h u t t i n g down. I f you put more through i t , i t ' s j u s t 

18 going t o increase t h a t . 

19 Q. I'm going t o r e f e r you back t o DCP's E x h i b i t 

20 3. I won't hand i t t o you, but I ' l l j u s t show i t t o you. 

21 This i s the H2S contingency plan. You heard people 

22 t a l k i n g about t h i s today? 

23 A. (Witness nods head.) 

24 Q. Have you seen t h i s before? 

25 A. I seen i t yesterday i n your o f f i c e . 
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1 • Q. Before t h a t , have you seen i t ? 

2 A. No, never seen i t . 

3 Q. Has anyone from DCP contacted you and 

4 mentioned a contingency plan? 

5 A. No. 

6 Q. Has anyone --

7 A. They know I'm there. They seen me over there 

8 working on the farm and s t u f f . No, they haven't never 

9 contacted me. 

10 Q. So you're completely sure you've never 

11 received a copy of t h i s ? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. Based on your understanding of what you've 

14 heard today, what does t h i s represent r i g h t here? 

15 A. That would be l i k e an emergency plan of what 

16 would be done i f -- you know, how they would evacuate 

17 people, j u s t a type of emergency response. 

18 Q. Did you hear the witness e a r l i e r today s t a t i n g 

19 t h a t you're e n t i t l e d t o receive t h i s plan and t h a t he 

20 thought DCP had provided you w i t h i t ? 

21 A. Yes, yes. 

22 Q. Do you agree w i t h tha t? 

23 A. Repeat t h a t . 

24 Q. Do you agree t h a t y o u ' r e e n t i t l e d t o n o t i c e ^ , 

25 under t h i s plan? I s t h i s something you would have l i k e d 
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1 t o have seen? .. 

2 A. Yes. I would have liked more communication \ 

3 between me and DCP from the very beginning, back i n 20 06. ! 

4 They wouldn't even acknowledge I was even there. They -- j 
j 

5 I remember reading i n one r e p o r t i t t a l k e d j 
6 about i r r i g a t i o n w e l l s , and I have f o u r of them w i t h i n a | 

I 

7 h a l f mile of t h i s p l a n t . And i n t h a t r e p o r t i t says | 

8 there's none w i t h i n a mi l e . Yeah. And I was r i g h t I 

9 there. 

10 The o n l y way I found out about t h i s H2S w e l l j 

11 was one of t h e i r employees t o l d me, "We're g e t t i n g ready ; 

12 t o get r i d of t h i s s u l f u r p l a n t and we're going t o put an i 

I 

13 i n j e c t i o n w e l l a mile and a h a l f away." Then I s t a r t e d , j 

14 "Wait a minute. That's r i g h t on me." That's how I found { 

15 out about i t . 

16 Q. You mentioned communication w i t h DCP. Did you ; 

17 hear e a r l i e r i n the day one of the witnesses said t h a t j 

18 you d i d not al l o w DCP o f f i c i a l s on your land t o i n s t a l l ! 

19 the alarm? I 

2 0 A. They never asked. | 

21 Q. Do you have any idea what t h a t ' s r e f e r r i n g to? 

22 A. I t may be t h a t my o r i g i n a l lawyer said t h a t we 

23 d i d not want an alarm at my house. But they never d i d j 

24 come back t o me and, "Let's work t h i s out or l e t ' s see 

25 what we can" -- no, they never d i d . And I never heard ! 
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1 from them. - • - - - -

2 Q. What was the -- why d i d n ' t you want an alarm? 

3 A. From what I see now, I would never get any 

4 sleep. This p l a n t i s going o f f a l l the time. And I 

5 bet -- of course I don't have the operation records i n 

6 f r o n t of me -- i t ' s close t o 1,000 times since they 

7 s t a r t e d t h i s i n 2009. These alarms would be going o f f 

8 c o n s t a n t l y . 

9 And I have my grandchildren out there at 

10 times. And can you imagine g e t t i n g a g r a n d c h i l d up i n 

11 the middle of the n i g h t and saying, "We've got t o go. 

12 We've got t o go. There might be some H2S." 

13 Q. Well, I should c l e a r something up. E a r l i e r I 

14 asked you about alarms, and you s a i d you heard two 

15 audible alarms. Are we t a l k i n g about d i f f e r e n t things? 

16 A. The one I t h i n k was some ki n d of freezeup, 

17 because the whole p l a n t was going o f f . I mean -- or 

18 maybe a m a l f u n c t i o n w i t h the computer system, because 

19 every alarm -- i t was a r e a l c o l d day. Every alarm i n 

20 t h a t was b l i n k i n g and going o f f . 

21 The other time, i t was j u s t one. And i t was 

22 j u s t on the -- i t would be the n o r t h side of the 

23 compressor. I t was j u s t s e t t i n g there, b l i n k i n g and 

24 going o f f . I would have thought t h a t would have shut 

25 t h a t p l a n t down. I f t h a t ' s an H2S leak d e t e c t o r , i t 
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1 should have - shut t h a t p l a n t -down .- - —- - -

2 But they were s t i l l running, and i t was j u s t 

3 s e t t i n g there, b l i n k i n g and sounding -- t h a t ' s how -- the 

4 audible i s how I knew something was going on. I might 

5 not have n o t i c e d j u s t the b l i n k i n g l i g h t . 

6 Q. Mr. Smith, what's your understanding about 

7 subsurface movement of t h i s gas t h a t ' s being i n j e c t e d ? 

8 A. What i s what, now? 

9 Q. What do you -- what's your understanding about 

10 what's happening t o t h i s gas a f t e r i t goes i n t o the 

11 ground? 

12 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Objection. I don't t h i n k 

13 Mr. Smith has shown he's q u a l i f i e d t o t e s t i f y about any 

14 of the issues about subsurface. I don't t h i n k he's a 

15 g e o l o g i s t or an engineer. 

16 MR. BUNTING: We're j u s t asking f o r h i s 

17 knowledge, i f he has any f i r s t h a n d . 

18 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Based on what experience? 

19 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: He hasn't q u a l i f i e d --

2 0 MR. BUNTING: We haven't tendered him as 

21 an expert. 

22 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: You tendered him as a 

23 r e s iden t o f the area. I s u s t a i n t h a t o b j e c t i o n . 

24 Q. (By Mr. Bunt ing) What's - - so how do you 

25 en te r your p r o p e r t y , Mr. Smith? 
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1 A. I come down Maddox Road. I t ' s -straight- north-. 

2 Q. Can you f i n d Maddox Road on what you have i n 

3 f r o n t of you? 

4 A. Yes. I t comes o f f of Highway 62 180, and i t 

5 goes i n on s e c t i o n -- the l i n e between Sections 25 and 

6 30. 

7 Q. I f these roads aren't labeled, could you 

8 please l a b e l them? 

9 A. I t h i n k i t does have Maddox. 

10 Q. So I asked you, how do you enter your 

11 property? 

12 A. I have a c a t t l e guard. You know, I j u s t -- I 

13 unlock i t and go i n r i g h t t h e r e . I t ' s k i n d of hard --

14 i t ' s r i g h t at the end of Maddox Road, before i t turns 

15 back t o the west. That's the entrance of my property. 

16 Q. I s there any other way i n or out? 

17 A. No, no. 

18 Q. So where i s t h i s entrance i n r e l a t i o n t o the 

19 AGI well? 

2 0 A. I t i s about -- t h i s shows maybe a h a l f mile 

21 from the entrance. Where I go i n i s a h a l f mile from the 

22 i n j e c t i o n w e l l . 

23 Q. And so l e t ' s say -- I ' l l g ive you a 

24 h y p o t h e t i c a l . Let's say something were t o invoke t h i s 

25 contingency plan, some u n f l a r e d release of H2S, and the 
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•-1- -wind-were-blowing-it towards your property- How-would 

2 you -- would you have t o get through t h i s gate t o leave? 

3 A. I could go across pasture land and maybe f i n d 

4 a gate out of there. And then i f i t wasn't locked, maybe 

5 go t o another -- t h i s i s my way i n and out of there. 

6 Q. This i s your main way i n and out? Would 

7 you --

8 A. I would have t o see which way the wind i s 

9 blowing, f i r s t t h i n g . I sure wouldn't want t o go toward 

10 i t . I have become very aware of which way the wind i s 

11 blowing every day t h a t I'm out the r e . 

12 Q. Are there any other developed roads on your 

13 property? 

14 A. Yeah. There's some two-track -- you know, I 

15 c a l l them ranch roads or -- and then -- but they run i n t o 

16 peoples' p r i v a t e property, and I might not be able t o get 

17 out t h a t way. They might have i t locked or -- t h i s i s my 

18 main way i n and out. 

19 Q. So you have one main entrance t h a t you know 

20 you can get i n and out of? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. What happens i f H2S i s released and i t ' s 

23 blowing towards your house and you have t o leave? 

24 A. I'm going t o get down the opposite d i r e c t i o n , 

25 however I can -- j u s t as f a r away from i t as I can. 
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1 . . .. Q. Assuming .you can get over t h a t farmland and 

2 maybe f i n d a gate? 

3 A. Um-hum. Yes. 

4 Q. I s the only way you're guaranteed t o be able 

5 t o leave your p r o p e r t y by going i n through t h a t one 

6 entrance? 

7 A. At n i g h t , t h i s -- I need t o be able t o get out 

8 t h i s way. But i n the daytime, I could f i n d my way out of 

9 there going through other peoples' property. 

10 Q. Why do you say i t ' s d i f f e r e n t at night? 

11 A. Well, at n i g h t I can't f i n d these roads. I f 

12 you've ever been out i n a pasture, i t ' s hard t o f i n d 

13 these two-track roads and head -- you know, my main -- I 

14 would j u s t go the opposite d i r e c t i o n the wind i s blowing 

15 and j u s t get as f a r away from i t as I could. 

16 Q. I s i t safe f o r you and your f a m i l y t o l i v e so 

17 close t o the p l a n t and have one way i n and one way out? 

18 A. No, I don't t h i n k i t i s . 

19 MR. BUNTING: Those are a l l the questions 

20 I have f o r you, Mr. Smith. 

21 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have a few questions f o r 

22 Mr. Smith. 

23 Good afternoon, Mr. Smith. 

24 THE WITNESS: H i . 

25 

1--—îl—» 
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1 • CROSS-EXAMINATION 

2 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

3 Q. You mentioned e a r l i e r i n your testimony t h a t 

4 you b e l i e v e you saw a f l a r e f o u r t o f i v e times a week. 

5 Was t h a t your testimony? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. Was t h a t at the p l a n t or at the w e l l s i t e ? 

8 A. At the w e l l s i t e . 

9 Q. So from your house can you see the f l a r e stack 

10 of the w e l l s i t e ? 

11 A. Yeah, anywhere on my property. 

12 Q. And you i n d i c a t e d t h a t four t o f i v e times a 

13 week you saw the f l a r e . Give us some time parameters. 

14 When d i d you f i r s t s t a r t n o t i c i n g the f l a r e ? 

15 A. I n 2009, as soon as they s t a r t e d t r y i n g t o put 

16 i t on l i n e . You know, they had heck g e t t i n g i t ever t o 

17 go. They f i n a l l y got i t going. And there f o r a while, 

18 i t seemed l i k e they were working out a l o t of bugs. And 

19 once they got t h a t , i t k i n d of calmed down a l i t t l e b i t . 

20 But now I see i t i n c r e a s i n g , j u s t more f l a r e s . 

21 And i t ' s been awful hot down there. 

22 Q. And your testimony -- I be l i e v e you said you 

23 b e l i e v e t h a t the f l a r e goes up when the w e l l i s down? I s 

24 t h a t the word you used, when i t ' s down? 

25 A. No. When the compressor i s down. 
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1 Q. Okay. -Are-you aware of- whether t h a t ' s -the 

2 only reason the f l a r e might be on? 

3 A. I f they get a leak, t h a t f l a r e w i l l be on, i f 

4 they leak H2S. I f they have some k i n d of t e c h n i c a l --

5 you know, a compressor overheating or any k i n d of alarm '" 

6 on t h a t compressor, low o i l , t h a t f l a r e i s going t o go 

7 o f f . 

8 Q. Were you present f o r Mr. Cook's testimony t h i s 

9 morning? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. And do you r e c a l l h i s testimony t h a t the f l a r e 

12 w i l l come on i f they are purging their,equipment, f o r 

13 example? 

14 A. Right. I understand there i s what they c a l l 

15 sweet gas. 

16 Q. I ' d l i k e t o ask you s o r t of the same set of 

17 questions on the alarm. You s a i d you heard an audible 

18 alarm two times. Do I understand t h a t c o r r e c t l y ? 

19 A. Yes. We do not get t h a t alarm every time. 

20 Q. I s t h a t alarm from the p l a n t or from the w e l l 

21 s i t e ? 

22 A. T h a t ' s f r om the w e l l . 

23 Q. How do you know i t ' s f rom the w e l l s i t e ? 

24 A. Because i t f l a r e s . I t s t a r t s f l a r i n g . And 

25 then here w i l l come a bunch of DCP t r u c k s , and t h e y ' l l 
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1 s t a r t working on i t . j 

2 Q. You mean you see the f l a r e and then you hear j 

3 the alarm? i 

4 A. No. I do not -- it does not alarm. You know, • 

5 I'm not 
i 

t o t a l l y f a m i l i a r w i t h t h e i r -- they've never ! 

6 i n v i t e d me over even t o look at i t . But the audible I 

7 t h i n k i s j u s t when i t ' s an H2S leak. j 

8 Q. How do you know that? i 

9 A. Well, because they go down a l o t , and there's 

10 no audible alarm. Y o u ' l l j u s t see the f l a r e take o f f . i 

11 You won t never hear any k i n d of audible alarm. j 

12 Q. Are you aware i f there are other reasons why 

13 the alarm may sound? J 

14 A. No. 

15 Q. Have you ever asked t o v i s i t the w e l l s i t e ? f 

16 A. I have not, no. t 

17 Q. Are you aware of whether -- you i n d i c a t e d t h a t ; 

18 DCP had never contacted you when you heard the audible j 

19 alarm. Are you aware of whether DCP is required to \ 

20 contact you when there's an audible alarm? 

21 A. You'd t h i n k i f somebody's l i f e might be i n 

22 danger, they might c a l l you. I don't know. j 

23 Q. Are you suggesting t h a t because there's an 

24 audible alarm, there's a threat to human health? \ 

25 A. Yeah. There could a c t u a l l y be H2S. 
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1 -~ Q. But you're not aware of other-reasons why t h i s -

2 alarm may sound, other than f o r p r o t e c t i o n of human 

3 health? 

4 A. Right. 

5 Q. You also i n d i c a t e d t h a t you sometimes get --

6 S02, i s t h a t s u l f u r dioxide? I s t h a t what t h a t is? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. I t ' s not H2S? I t h i n k you v e r i f i e d t h a t . 

9 A. No, no. I have smelled some strange odors 

10 and, you know, I don't know what they were. They weren't 

11 S02. I t was j u s t a very odd odor. I d i d n ' t know what i t 

12 was. 

13 Q. But you were saying i n t h i s instance, I t h i n k 

14 your testimony was, you were f a m i l i a r w i t h the smell of 

15 S02, so you knew t h a t ' s what was i n the a i r ? 

16 A. Yeah. When they're f l a r i n g , they're making 

17 S02. 

18 Q. I s i t also your testimony t h a t t h a t comes from 

19 the w e l l s i t e and not from the plant? 

20 A. A c t u a l l y , both. I get both. 

21 Q. You get both? You i n d i c a t e d you've seen some 

22 s u l f u r i n a water supply w e l l . Mr. Smith, what evidence 

23 are you o f f e r i n g today t h a t t h a t comes from the AGI well? 

24 A. I am not. I am j u s t t e l l i n g you I have a 

25 s u l f u r smell i n my w e l l . 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
cb81 C0b7-dfb5-4a40-a64a-a91 ac5509d 18 



— . ^ . — — _ — .— — -Page-1-1-7-

1 - - Q. Okay-: --- • •--

2 A. I t w i l l take more -- I w i l l need t o p u l l 

3 samples and take them t o a l o c a l l a b . I t d i d not have 

4 any b a c t e r i a . I thought maybe t h a t ' s what i t was, t h a t 

5 the w e l l had some b a c t e r i a . I t d i d not have i t . 

6 So now I've got t o go t o a reputable lab and 

7 have t h i s water analyzed and see i f they can come up w i t h 

8 what I am sm e l l i n g . 

9 Q. You t e s t i f i e d , I b e l i e v e , Mr. Smith, t h a t your 

10 water w e l l was at a depth of 225 feet? 

11 A. Right. 

12 Q. Are you aware t h a t the i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l f o r 

13 AGI w e l l i s between 8,700 and 9,000 feet? 

14 A. Right. 

15 Q. You t e s t i f i e d t h a t you have never seen the H2S 

16 contingency pl a n ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

17 A. I seen i t yesterday. He put i t -- he showed 

18 me what you had seen. 

19 Q. Were you aware t h a t DCP had t o have such an 

20 emergency plan? 

21 A. I kept seeing i t i n the orders, you know. And 

22 I thought, w e l l , t h e y ' l l contact me and t e l l me what I 

23 need t o do. And I never got contacted. 

24 Q. Did you ever c a l l DCP f o r such a plan? 

25 A. No. 
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1 Q. - You mentioned you thought t h a t i t wasn't you 

2 t h a t maybe d i d n ' t allow the hard-wired alarm, but t h a t 

3 maybe your o r i g i n a l lawyer sai d no? 

4 A. I t o l d him I d i d n ' t want an alarm i n my house, 

5 so t h a t 1 s where we l e f t i t . And he wrote a l e t t e r t o the 

6 OCD t h a t I d i d n ' t want an alarm i n my house. And I t o l d 

7 you why. I t would j u s t be going o f f a l l the time. 

8 Q. Sure. But he -- I j u s t want t o make sure I 

9 understood t h a t t h a t was something t h a t was from your 

10 d i r e c t i o n ? 

11 A. Yes. I said, " I do not want an alarm i n my 

12 house. I don't want t o l i v e t h a t way." 

13 Q. I s t h a t s t i l l your p o s i t i o n today, t h a t you 

14 don't --

15 A. Yes. 

16 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you, Mr. Smith. 

17 That's a l l the questions I have. 

18 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Commissioner Dawson? 

19 EXAMINATION 

20 BY COMMISSIONER DAWSON: 

21 Q. You sa i d you had some other w e l l s i n the area, 

22 water wells? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. Where are they located? 

25 A. I ' v e got one t h a t ' s even c l o s e r t o the w e l l . 
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1 As you t u r n i n and head from my. house on Section .30, i t ... 

2 i s -- i t w i l l be r i g h t on the road, and i t ' s i n the 

3 northwest q u a r t e r of Section 30. 

4 And then I have another one t h a t i s i n Section 

5 25, and i t i s -- i t ' s going t o be the same as t h a t area. 

6 I t w i l l be t o the south -- i f I'm l o o k i n g at these 

7 s e c t i o n l i n e s r i g h t , I t h i n k i t ' s i n the n o r t h quarter 

8 of -- the northeast quarter of Section 25. 

9 I can get you the exact -- and then I have 

10 another one t h a t i s i n Section 25. And i t i s -- i t ' s 

11 going t o be -- i t ' s on the west side. I t would be -- I 

12 t h i n k i t ' s going t o be i n the south q u a r t e r of Section 25 

13 on the east side. 

14 Q. Southeast? 

15 A. Yeah. 

16 Q. Are those w e l l s completed, do you t h i n k , i n 

17 the same water a q u i f e r ? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. Do they have any S02 smells i n them? 

2 0 A. I j u s t use them f o r i r r i g a t i o n . I haven't 

21 r e a l l y -- u n t i l I hooked t h i s one up t o t h i s t r a i l e r 

22 house, I had j u s t been watering c a t t l e w i t h i t . Once I 

23 hooked i t up t o the house, then I had t h i s odor. 

24 Now, these i r r i g a t i o n -- we're pumping i n t o a 

25 closed system. I haven't had those t e s t e d . But I 
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- 1 - probably do need t o t e s t - t h a t one -that i s c l o s e s t t o the 

2 w e l l . 

3 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: I have no f u r t h e r 

4 questions. 

5 EXAMINATION 

6 BY COMMISSIONER BALCH: 

7 Q. I have a question about the water w e l l s . From 

8 your d e s c r i p t i o n , i t sounds l i k e your w e l l a t your 

9 t r a i l e r i s also i n the northeast quarter of Section 25. 

10 How f a r away i s t h a t from t h a t i r r i g a t i o n well? 

11 A. I t looks l i k e on t h i s map here, about from --

12 my other i r r i g a t i o n well? 

13 Q. The c l o s e s t i r r i g a t i o n w e l l t o your new water 

14 w e l l . 

15 A. I t ' s almost a mi l e . 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Are we going t o be 

17 able t o look at t h a t map? 

18 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: He needs t o be able t o 

19 describe i t so t h a t the t r a n s c r i p t can r e f l e c t those 

2 0 areas on the map t h a t we're t a l k i n g about. 

21 MR. BUNTING: We'll make t h i s p a r t of the 

22 record, t h i s e x h i b i t . 

23 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: You w i l l ? 

24 MR. BUNTING: Yes. 

25 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Y o u ' l l p rov ide copies 
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1 . f o r . everyone? . . .... .. _ __ 

2 MR. BUNTING: Yes . 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I have no f u r t h e r 

4 questions then. 

5 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: Can you also provide 

6 the sampling r e s u l t s from the w e l l near the t r a i l e r ? 

7 MR. BUNTING: We'd be happy t o . 

8 EXAMINATION 

9 BY CHAIRMAN BAILEY: 

10 Q. I was a l i t t l e confused. You t a l k e d about 

11 your company t h a t you worked f o r , and then the number of 

12 times t h a t you've seen f l a r e s . Do you work from home? 

13 A. I work f o r Transwestern P i p e l i n e Company, and 

14 I l i v e i n a company house. And when I -- on the 

15 weekends, we stay at t h i s farm. And on my vacation days, 

16 ho l i d a y s , we are at the farm. What p a r t of t h a t 

17 d i d n ' t -- no, I don't see the f l a r e from Transwestern. I 

18 see the f l a r e when I'm at the farm. 

19 Q. On weekends and holidays? 

20 A. Yes, and vacations. I'm over there almost 

21 every day at the farm. I have c a t t l e , and then we're 

22 i r r i g a t i n g . So I'm there every day a f t e r work. 

23 Q. You t a l k e d about your company only allows a 

24 maximum of fo u r p a r t s per m i l l i o n of H2S? 

25 A. Yes. 
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~ ~ i ' Q. Do you T-now~iTmtIn^F'"s~_"ry gas cdhcenfJra~tri"on or 

2 wet gas? 

3 A. That i s dry. We don't want any wet. 

4 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Those are a l l the 

5 questions I have. 

6 MR. BUNTING: I have one more. 

7 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

8 BY MR. BUNTING: 

9 Q. Mr. Smith, whose r e s p o n s i b i l i t y i s i t -- i s i t 

10 your r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o c a l l DCP and f i n d out i f they have 

11 any warnings t o r e l a t e t o you? 

12 A. I would t h i n k i t would be t h e i r r e s p o n s i b i l i t y 

13 t o c a l l me. They know what's going on over there. I do 

14 not. 

15 Q. Do you know i f they have a r e s p o n s i b i l i t y 

16 under the law t o do that? 

17 A. I would t h i n k they would. I don't know. 

18 MR. BUNTING: Okay. That's a l l . Thank 

19 you. 

20 We'd l i k e t o move i n t o evidence the - - what 

21 was demonstra t ive and what was DCP's E x h i b i t . And w e ' l l 

22 make copies f o r the Commission. 

23 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: The photographs, are 

24 they p a r t o f your - -

25 MR. BUNTING: We haven ' t used them. But 
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1 yes, we'd l i k e t o move them a l l i n t o evidence, i f 

2 po s s i b l e . 

3 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I ' d l i k e some so r t of 

4 e v i d e n t i a r y foundation of what those p i c t u r e s are 

5 supposed t o be, i f they're going t o move them. 

6 MR. BUNTING: Sure. May we approach? 

7 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

8 Q. (By Mr. Bunting) Mr. Smith, I already gave 

9 you what we've marked as E x h i b i t A, and here i s E x h i b i t B 

10 and here i s E x h i b i t 3. I j u s t handed you -- I'm sorry, 

11 E x h i b i t C. I've handed you three photographs now. 

12 A. These three? 

13 Q. Yes, s i r . 

14 A. Yeah. This i s the H2S f a c i l i t y . 

15 Q. Which one are you describing? 

16 A. The H2S f a c i l i t y . 

17 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Which e x h i b i t i s t h a t , 

18 s i r ? 

19 THE WITNESS: I s t h a t A? 

2 0 MR. BUNTING: There's a s t i c k e r at the 

21 bottom. 

22 THE WITNESS: That i s B. 

23 Q. (By Mr. Bunting) What d i d you say t h a t was? 

24 A. The H2S f a c i l i t y . And I am on -- where I took 

25 t h i s p i c t u r e , I am close t o the middle of my farm. 
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1 Q. This is- a photograph you took?-. 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. I s i t a t r u t h f u l and accurate d e p i c t i o n of 

4 what you saw on t h a t day? 

5 A. I see t h i s a l l the time. 

6 Q. What about the next one? What e x h i b i t i s 

7 that? 

8 A. E x h i b i t A. That shows -- my entrance i s r i g h t 

9 i n t h i s bottom corner. Then I go s t r a i g h t down t h a t road 

10 t h a t you see and go past the p l a n t t o go t o my house. 

11 Q. I s t h a t a photograph you took? 

12 A. (Witness nods head.) 

13 Q. I s i t an accurate d e p i c t i o n of the way you saw 

14 th i n g s t h a t day? 

15 A. Yes, yes. 

16 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: That road i s 

17 o r i e n t e d -- you're t r a v e l i n g from south, heading n o r t h on 

18 t h a t road? 

19 THE WITNESS: No. I'm heading s t r a i g h t 

20 east. I'm heading towards the east. Then I go up and 

21 t u r n n o r t h t o go t o my house. I go past the p l a n t , and 

22 then I t u r n n o r t h t o go t o my house. 

23 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: You're going through 

24 Section 19? 

25 THE WITNESS: Going through 19, yes. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
cb81 C0b7-dfb5-4a40-a64a-a91 ac5509d 18 



— ^ , — . ^ - _ Page 125 
1 CHAIRMAN. BAILEY.:. . When were these _ 

2 photographs taken? Are they a l l on the same day? 

3 THE WITNESS: I don't remember the exact 

4 date. This was a f t e r a rainstorm, and we hadn't had any 

5 r a i n i n s i x months. 

6 But I d i d -- I took t h i s j u s t t o -- and I 

7 t h i n k I took t h i s one the same day. These were both the 

8 same day. But I have -- these are the only two p i c t u r e s 

9 t h a t I emailed. I have several on d i f f e r e n t days t h a t 

10 I -- I j u s t picked these two because you could see i t so 

11 p l a i n . We had the black clouds behind. 

12 Q. (By Mr. Bunting) What about the t h i r d one, 

13 Mr. Smith? 

14 A. This i s Linam, and t h a t ' s t h a t smoke I'm 

15 t e l l i n g you about. When they do t h a t , and i f the wind i s 

16 j u s t r i g h t , i t t r a v e l s t o my ranch. I t ' s j u s t l i k e these 

17 f o r e s t f i r e s t h a t you guys have had t h a t you get t h a t 

18 smoke o f f those f o r e s t f i r e s . And i t ' s the same t h i n g . 

19 I t t r a v e l s out there and then comes r i g h t back down. 

20 That day t h a t I t o l d you where I got si c k t o 

21 my stomach, they were doing t h i s r i g h t here. And I t h i n k 

22 i t come i n on me. 

23 Q. Did you take t h a t photograph, s i r ? 

24 A. No. I d i d not, no. 

25 Q. Where d i d you get i t ? 
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-1 A. Oh, t h i s one? Yes, yes... I thought you^meant. 

2 d i d I take a photograph when t h a t come down i n on me. 

3 Q. You took that? 

4 A. Yeah, I took t h i s . 

5 Q. That's a photograph of the Linam Ranch 

6 f a c i l i t y ? 

7 A. Yes. And my w i f e has taken several p i c t u r e s . 

8 We've got a whole l o t of p i c t u r e s of both f a c i l i t i e s . 

9 MR. BUNTING: Thank you, s i r . 

10 I b e l i e v e we've already moved the map i n t o 

11 evidence? 

12 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

13 MR. BUNTING: We please move E x h i b i t s A, B 

14 and C and the map as E x h i b i t D i n t o evidence. 

15 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Are there objections? 

16 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I don't have any 

17 o b j e c t i o n s • 

18 I would l i k e t o ask some a d d i t i o n a l questions 

19 of Mr. Smith, now t h a t we're t a l k i n g about these 

20 p i c t u r e s , i f I could. 

21 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k t h a t would be 

22 app r o p r i a t e . 

23 MS. MUNDS-DRY: But I don't have any 

24 o b j e c t i o n t o the p i c t u r e s . He doesn't remember when he 

25 took them, but I don't remember what I had f o r breakfast 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
cb81 C0b7-dfb5-4a40-a64a-a91 ac5509d18 



Page 127 j 
1 yesterday, so I'm not going t o hold t h a t against them. j 

2 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: E x h i b i t s A, B, C and the j 

3 map t h a t i s p a r t of the DCP e x h i b i t are a l l admitted i n t o j 

4 evidence. j 

5 (Exhibits A, B, C and D were admitted.) ] 

6 MS. MUNDS-DRY: That will be Exhibit D? 1 

7 MR. BUNTING: Yes, D. \ 

8 MS. MUNDS-DRY: And w e ' l l get copies of j 

9 that? 

10 MR. BUNTING: Yes. \ 

11 MS. MUNDS-DRY: May I ask a few questions j 

12 about these p i c t u r e s ? 

13 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

14 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We were so close t o being 

15 done. 1 

16 THE WITNESS: I'm okay. I t r a v e l e d a long | 

17 way. I don't mind. 

18 RECROSS-EXAMINATION j 

19 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

20 Q. These are the two p i c t u r e s , E x h i b i t A and B, 

21 t h a t you represented were p a r t of the w e l l s i t e ? ! 

22 A. Yes. \ 

23 Q. Are you aware t h a t the p i l o t on t h a t f l a r e i s 1 

24 l i t a l l the time? 

25 A. Yes. , j 
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1 - Q. And I guess I have a more- basic question. . „__!__. 

2 You're aware t h a t the f l a r e i s p a r t of the s a f e t y system 

3 t h a t ' s a p a r t of the well? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. And so you're not suggesting t h a t j u s t because 

6 there's a f l a r e , t h a t there i s some danger t o you, are 

7 you? 

8 A. No. 

9 Q. This E x h i b i t C, Mr. Smith, you i n d i c a t e d t h i s 

10 was from the p l a n t , not the w e l l s i t e ? 

11 A. That's Linam. 

12 Q. And the p l a n t i s not a subject of today's 

13 hearing; c o r r e c t ? 

14 A. Right, r i g h t . 

15 MS. MUNDS-DRY: That's a l l the questions I 

16 have. Thank you. 

17 THE WITNESS: I have seen the p i l o t out on 

18 t h i s f a c i l i t y . 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Have you provided us any 

20 evidence of t h a t today? 

21 THE WITNESS: None, other than j u s t my 

22 w i f e was w i t h me. 

23 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. 

24 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Do you have anything 

25 more? 
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1 _ MR. BUNTING: No. 

2 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Then you may be excused. 

3 THE WITNESS: Thank you. Can I say thank 

4 you f o r l e t t i n g me t e s t i f y ? And I f e e l b e t t e r about t h i s 

5 than the f i r s t time I come up here. We d i d the same 

6 t h i n g . I t e s t i f i e d a f t e r lunch, and the Chairman f e l l 

7 asleep. So t h i s went a l o t b e t t e r . 

8 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: We have a new Chairman 

9 i n place. 

10 Do you have any other witnesses? 

11 MR. BUNTING: No. 
12 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: That concludes your 

13 case? 

14 MR. BUNTING: Yes, ma'am. 

15 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Are there any c l o s i n g 

16 statements? 

17 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I do, only because of 

18 maybe some confusion about what DCP i s i n f r o n t of you 

19 asking here today. 

20 F i r s t , also, Madam Chair, I wanted t o 

21 c l a r i f y -- as I s a i d I would, I checked w i t h DCP. And 

22 should the requirement t h a t they need t o get the pressure 

23 t e s t e d every two years, as has been the new c o n d i t i o n on 

24 newer AGI w e l l s , should the Commission wish t o place t h a t 

25 c o n d i t i o n on them as w e l l , i n s t e a d of the f i v e years, 
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1- t h a t ' s acceptable. I just - wanted to--follow up on t h a t .-

2 Thank you f o r your time today and f o r s e t t i n g 

3 t h i s s p e c i a l hearing docket. We know i t was o f f of your 

4 r e g u l a r docket, and we appreciate t h a t . And we 

5 appreciate you recognizing t h a t we are i n a b i t of a 

6 c r i t i c a l s i t u a t i o n , i n t h a t we have shut i n gas producers 

7 i n an attempt t o comply w i t h what we view as a temporary 

8 order, the D order t h a t imposed the temporary volume 

9 l i m i t . 

10 We asked i n our motion t o remove the paragraph 

11 N, which r e q u i r e s a discharge permit. I don't t h i n k 

12 there's been any evidence or o p i n i o n t o the co n t r a r y t h a t 

13 a discharge permit i s r e q u i r e d . I t appears c l e a r from 

14 the D i v i s i o n t h a t a discharge permit i s no longer 

15 r e q u i r e d , so we do continue t o ask you f o r t h a t . 

16 I n terms of the procedural steps forward, I 

17 leave t h a t t o your - - I ' l l suck up a l i t t l e b i t . You're 

18 a very smart Commission as t o the best procedural method. 

19 That Q c o n d i t i o n does r e q u i r e DCP, at the end of the day, 

2 0 once i t ' s met a l l the c o n d i t i o n s , t o come t o the 

21 Engineering Bureau and provide evidence t h a t we have 

22 complied w i t h a l l the c o n d i t i o n s , and issue t h a t 

23 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e order. 

24 We would suggest t o you t h a t i f you are 

25 considering amending t h a t o r i g i n a l order, t h a t you 
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1 consider g-ivi-ng the a u t h o r i z a t i o n and- e s s e n t i a l l y - u s 

2 s k i p p i n g t h a t Q step. We'll c e r t a i n l y do t h a t , i f t h a t ' s 

3 how the Commission sees i t . We're t r y i n g t o f i g u r e out 

4 the most e f f i c i e n t and economic way, and we s t i l l are 

5 under t h a t temporary order u n t i l you issue your d e c i s i o n . 

6 But at t h i s p o i n t , we would l i k e t o be c l e a r 

7 t h a t what we are mostly seeking i s t o remove t h a t N 

8 c o n d i t i o n , which w i l l a l l o w us t o proceed t o get our --

9 whatever f i n a l order t h a t i s , however you view t h a t , t o 

10 proceed under the o r i g i n a l order c o n d i t i o n s . 

11 Thank you very much. 

12 MR. BUNTING: Madam Chair, Commissioners, 

13 thank you f o r hearing us out today. Mr. Smith sees t h i s 

14 as a question of whether or not i t ' s safe t o i n j e c t more 

15 gas r i g h t next t o h i s house. 

16 He's a member of the i n d u s t r y . He doesn't 

17 want t o see gas producers shut out unnecessarily, but 

18 t h i s was a question of s a f e t y f o r him and h i s f a m i l y and 

19 the environment. And DCP was not responsive t o many 

20 requests f o r i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t would have a l l a y e d some of 

21 these f e a r s , so t h a t ' s what we are l o o k i n g f o r today. 

22 That's what we came here f o r today. Thank you. 

23 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Then the Commission can 

24 go i n t o executive session t o debate t h i s hearing. We 

25 w i l l announce, i f we reach a consensus, our decision and 
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1 d i r e c t our Counsel, t o prepare._an .order , . which ..will .be . .. 

2 signed at our next r e g u l a r l y scheduled meeting on the 

3 28th. 

4 So do I hear a motion f o r the Commission t o go 

5 i n t o executive session pursuant t o NMSA 1978 Section 

6 10-15-1-H t o d e l i b e r a t e o n l y on t h i s case? 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I make t h a t motion. 

8 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: Second. 

9 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: A l l those i n favor? We 

10 w i l l now go i n t o session. I f you'd l i k e t o stay around 

11 t o hear the --

12 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I had a c l a r i f y i n g 

13 question. I'm so r r y . I f you determine t h a t you w i l l 

14 need f u r t h e r d e l i b e r a t i o n s , which i s understandable, 

15 would there be ah o p p o r t u n i t y f o r DCP t o ask f o r some 

16 s o r t of i n t e r i m or temporary r e l i e f w hile you're 

17 determining -- we are s t i l l under t h a t 4 m i l l i o n order. 

18 We are s h u t t i n g i n producers. 

19 We're j u s t wondering, i f you determine t h a t i t 

20 w i l l be some time before you reach a determination, 

21 whether we w i l l have an o p p o r t u n i t y t o seek some s o r t of 

22 i n t e r i m r e l i e f f o r some a d d i t i o n a l volume increase so we 

23 don't have t o shut i n producers. 

24 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Let us go i n t o session 

25 and debate the question. And then when we come back out, 
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. i we '11 be able t o respond t o t h a t -question -~ -

2 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you, Madam Chair. 

3 (Whereupon the Commission went i n t o executive session.) 

4 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: We're back on the 

5 record. 

6 The Commission has determined t h a t DCP has met 

7 the requirements of R-12546; t h a t paragraph N i s no 

8 longer a p p l i c a b l e ; t h a t paragraph Q, which r e q u i r e s the 

9 operator t o go back t o the Engineering Bureau, i s not 

10 a p p l i c a b l e . With the Commission order, they w i l l have 

11 a u t h o r i t y t o be i n j e c t i n g under the a u t h o r i t y of R-12546. 

12 However, Paragraph F w i l l be modified t o 

13 r e f l e c t the two-year requirement f o r pressure t e s t i n g , 

14 which i s the c u r r e n t D i v i s i o n requirement f o r a c i d gas 

15 i n j e c t i o n w e l l s . 

16 And paragraph O w i l l be modified t o no longer 

17 r e q u i r e an alarm at Mr. Smith's l o c a t i o n , but t o make a 

18 requirement t h a t DCP s h a l l make a v a i l a b l e t o landowners 

19 w i t h i n the ROE t h a t i s r e f l e c t e d i n DCP's map i n the 

20 contingency plan, which i s E x h i b i t 3, so t h a t the alarm 

21 system w i l l be made a v a i l a b l e , but i t i s not a 

22 requirement f o r DCP t o i n s t a l l i t . Counsel? 

23 MS. BADA: We need a motion. 

24 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Do you have a motion t o 

25 have the Commission Counsel d r a f t an order r e f l e c t i n g the 
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.1 statements I've j u s t m a d e ? . ; 

2 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: I ' l l second the 

3 motion. 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I ' l l f i r s t the 

5 motion. 

6 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: A l l those i n favor 

7 s i g n i f y by saying aye. A l l those opposed? 

8 Okay. The order should be d r a f t e d t o be 

9 signed a t our next Commission hearing on J u l y 28th. 

10 Thank you very much. 

11 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you very much. 

12 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Do I have a motion t o 

13 adjourn? 

14 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I so move. 

15 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Second? 

16 COMMISSIONER DAWSON: Second. 

17 CHAIRMAN BAILEY: A l l those i n favor 

18 s i g n i f y by saying aye. 

19 Okay. We w i l l adjourn the hearing. 

2 0 (The hearing was adjourned at 2:30 p.m.) 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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